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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Great World
Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries
collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$66,892,000, representing an increase by
approximately 21.35% as compared to the turnover of approximately
HK$55,122,000 for last year. Loss for the year was approximately
HK$34,998,000 (2017: HK$18,479,000). The Board did not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group is principally engaged in (i) property business; (ii) forestry
business; and (i) landscaping and earth-rock engineering business,
which are operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
the Republic of Angola.

Property business

The Group owns a property which comprises a residential and
commercial development site with a site area of approximately 3,111.96
square meters (“sg.m.”) located at Leshan City, Sichuan Province,
the PRC. The property has a gross floor area of approximately
28,251.82 sg.m. (inclusive of a basement floor) and comprises 4
portions with different functions, namely residential, commercial,
basement car park and facilities.

The leasing of the commercial portion of the property has commenced
and the Board expects to commence the selling programme of part
of the residential portion of the property and the leasing of certain
residential portion of the property and/or basement car park area when
the property market there appears to revive.

Forestry business

The Group owns a right to operate a contracted land of 5,000 mu for
cultivation of forestry products and carries on business in cultivation
and research of the fine and new varieties forestry products together
with the research and promotion of product cultivation technology for
producing clean energy purposes.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018

BIMIR -

AARKREARZBRAERAR(ARA ERE
MEARGHE ARE ] EER([ESEE])
MAZINAEBBE_T—N\F=A=1+—
HIFEEZFERS -

Br#ERIR
BE_Z-N\F=ZA=+—HILFE K&
B $% 154 2 58 4966,892,000/8 T - BMEF
& S REX55,122,0008 7T + B H14921.35% o
R E 5B 434,998,000 7 ( — T —+4F ¢
18,479,000 7T) - EF W T EBERAFE
IR EMERE(ZE—tF : 8&) -

E 3 qE)
KEEEEREODEES  ORELH R
(NBHECRTEH TRRREY  Z5%
B aE AR RS ([ R E ) B2 FH A
EAE% -

EES S

REBBEA —EYEMRPEME)IE %L
W ZYERE—RIEBAEELS,111.96F
FARTFERKDZEERER - MEZE
LHETELXH28,251.82F K (BIEHE) « I
MEE - B - HWEEBSRRELEE
ETHER 2 B 4ERK o

MEZBERIERMEE MEEFSHE
H AEBEBREMRRERTRERG G
SR EEMEZFERBBETEEDE
R/ SIS EISER

MEZRE

RE BB E 185,000 K& 4L A
BEEMEEMNFARRERTMBMREER
BERMEXEL  URNRELBRERRE
FRIT 3 K% HE [ E am AR AT ©



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The Group expects that it will be benefited from the revenue generated
from sale of forestry products growing steadily.

Landscaping and earth-rock engineering business

The Group is also engaged in constructing landscaping projects and
earth-rock engineering, providing afforested maintenance and planting
and selling forest trees and flowers.

Despite consummation of the presidential campaign in the Republic
of Angola, the political landscape remains instable, coupled with
fluctuations in the crude oil price. As a result, the local economy
experiences instability. Against such backdrop, the new landscaping
project of the Company remains largely dormant with the progress
falling out of our expectation. The Group is going to dispose of this
project such that resources can be redirected to our existing projects
and potential business opportunities with better financial returns which
may be identified.

PROSPECT

Although the government in the PRC has adopted measures and
increased efforts to revitalize the local economy amid the ongoing
US Federal Fund Rate-hike Cycle, the worldwide economic outlook
remains clouded with uncertainty. It is clear that 2018 will still be
challenging. Despite these, we are confident that Mainland China and
Hong Kong continue to embrace a promising prospect in the long
term.

The Company intends to continue the existing businesses of the Group
and is reviewing the exiting business strategies so as to formulate
business plans for future development of the Group, which will
eventually maximize future returns for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our staff members for their contribution in this year, and extend my
appreciation to the shareholders and investors for their support.

Ng Mui King, Joky
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yangqiang, aged 36, has been an executive director of the
Company since 6 October 2014. He is the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He has 11 years of experience in forestry,
finance and corporate management. He holds a bachelor’s degree
and a master’s degree in materials chemistry from the Central South
University of Forestry and Technology ( Fa R ZE R} F A ES),

Ms. Yang Wei, aged 40, has been an executive director of the
Company since 14 June 2016. She has 17 years of experience in clean
energy, environmental protection and planning strategies. She holds
a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Language from the Beijing Normal
University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky, aged 56, has been re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 22 December 2017. She is the chairman of the Board and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. She has
over 25 years of experience in telecommunication, import and export
trading, accounting, finance and corporate management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Koon Yan, aged 54, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 9 May 2008 and is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Chung holds
a Master’s degree in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a practicing member and a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Chung is a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung
CPA Ltd. He has over 24 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation. Currently, Mr. Chung is an independent non- executive
director of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “MB”), an independent non-executive director
of Synergy Group Holdings International Limited (stock code: 1539), a
company listed on the MB, and is also an independent non-executive
director of Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 8421),
whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from 16
March 2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

Mr. Chan Ying Cheong, aged 56, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 30 September 2010 and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan
has over 30 years of experience in banking, finance and corporate
management.

Ms. Zhao Yongmei, aged 50, has been an independent non-executive
director and a member of audit committee since 20 October 2014. She
is the chairman of the remuneration committee. She has over 21 years
of experience in banking, finance and corporate management.

Dr. Yang Fuyu, aged 43, has been an independent non-executive
director since 12 January 2016. He is a member of the remuneration
committee, the audit committee and the nomination committee. Dr.
Yang holds a Doctorate degree of Agronomy in China Agricultural
University. Dr. Yang is currently a Professor and a tutor for doctoral
students of China Agricultural University, the Secretary-general of
Innovative Strategic Alliance of National Forage Industry Technology,
the Secretary-general of Innovative Strategic Alliance of Beijing Huaxia
Prataculture Industry Technology, the director of the Youth Committee
of Chinese Grassland Society and the Secretary-general of Professional
Committee of Energy Grass of Chinese Grassland Society.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWL R D

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$66,892,000 (2017:
HK$55,122,000), representing an increase by approximately 21.35% as
compared to last year. The overall increase in turnover was generated
mainly from the forestry and landscaping business. Administrative and
other expenses increased to approximately HK$19,679,000 compared
to approximately HK$15,114,000 of the previous corresponding year,
representing a increased of approximately 30.2%. The increased in
administrative and other expenses was primarily due to impairment
loss in respect of goodwill of approximately HK$5,278,000 (as
explained in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements) and
loss from changes in fair value less costs to sell of biological assets
of approximately HK$10,519,000 (as analysed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements) were recognised for the year. Loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2018 was approximately HK$38,756,000, which was approximately
2.174 times higher than the loss attributable to owners of the Company
incurred for last year (2017: HK$17,822,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property business

The Group owns a property which comprises a residential and
commercial development site with a site area of approximately 3,111.96
square meters (“sg.m.”) located at Leshan City, Sichuan Province,
the PRC. The property has a gross floor area of approximately
28,251.82 sg.m. (inclusive of a basement floor) and comprises 4
portions with different functions, namely residential, commercial,
basement car park and facilities.

Revenue of approximately HK$529,000 was derived from temporary
leasing of the commercial portion of the property for the year ended
31 March 2018. The Group expects to commence the selling of part
of the residential portion of the property and the leasing of certain
residential portion and/or basement car park area of the property when
the property market there appears to revive.

Forestry business

The Group owns a right to operate a contracted land of 5,000 mu in
Makit county, Xinjiang, the PRC for a term expiring on 31 August 2081,
started from the date of completion of the acquisition of 60% equity
interest in Zhifeng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (as detailed in
the Company’s announcement dated 25 November 2016) on 19 May
2017, for cultivation of forestry products and carries on business in
cultivation and research of the fine and new varieties forestry products
together with the research and promotion of product cultivation
technology for producing clean energy purposes in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, a turnover of approximately
HK$52,676,000 was generated from the forestry business. The Group
expects the revenue generated from sale of forestry products will grow
steadily.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWL R D

Landscaping and earth-rock engineering business

The Group is also engaged in constructing landscaping projects and
earth-rock engineering, providing afforested maintenance and plating
and selling forest trees and flowers with projects operating in the
Republic of Angola.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, a turnover of approximately
HK$13,687,000 was generated from the landscaping and earth-
rock engineering business on projects, which were deferred after
the change of president, completed during the year. New projects
in the Republic of Angola continue to defer due to the uncertainties
of political and economic instability. The landscaping and earth-rock
engineering business development there was adversely affected and
its performance was not up to the expected level. The Company
negotiated with Mr. Ng Wa Pang (“Mr. Ng”) from whom the Group
acquired 51% equity interest in Best Sky Holdings Limited (“Best Sky”)
which, together with its subsidiaries, carried on the landscaping and
earth-rock engineering business and reached an agreement to sell the
51% equity interest in Best Sky to Mr. Ng at the original acquisition
price, i.e. HK$34,680,000 (the “Disposal”). Details of the Disposal have
been disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 26 June 2018.

Other business development

The Group is proactively seeking for business opportunities and
exploring new investment opportunities in order to further diversify
its activities to strengthen and broaden the revenue base. In the
third quarter of the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group started to
engage in the trading of information technology products; and then co-
operated with a joint venture partner through the formation of a joint
venture company in the last quarter of the year to expand the trading
business. A total gross revenue of approximately HK$6,894,000
with net income of approximately HK$92,000 were generated from
the trading business for the year ended 31 March 2018. Details of
the formation of joint venture have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 March 2018.

The Group is trying to introduce different lines of products and
marketing channels to extend its trading business, and proactively
exploring the development opportunities in upstream and downstream.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWL R D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s operations and investments were financed principally by
cash generated from its business operations, borrowings and shares
issued. As at 31 March 2018, cash and bank deposits of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$59,116,000, representing a decrease
of 5.76% comparing with the cash and bank deposits of approximately
HK$62,731,000 as at 31 March 2017. The Group’s net current assets,
which comprised properties held for sale, biological assets trade and
other receivables, cash and bank deposits, trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors related companies, and non-controlling
interest, and income tax payables amounted to approximately
HK$112,986,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$146,203,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio, which was defined as the ratio of net debt
to equity, was 34% as at 31 March 2018 (2017: 25%). The increase
in gearing ratio as at 31 March 2018 as compared to that of 31 March
2017 is mainly attributable to the decrease in cash and bank deposit
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Capital structure
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fund raising activity

The Group had no material fund raising activity during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWL R D

Treasury policies

The Group adopted a conservative treasury policy with almost all bank
deposits being kept in Hong Kong dollars, or in the local currencies of
the operating subsidiaries to minimise exposure to foreign exchange
risk. Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi, except for certain cost of sales, which was denominated in
Angolan Kwanza, incurred for landscaping and earth-rock engineering
works carried out in the Republic of Angola. The Group did not
experience any material difficulties or effects on its operations or
liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency exchange rates during the
year under review. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no foreign
exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial
derivatives for hedging purpose.

The Group is closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no outstanding commitments
in respect of capital expenditure for the construction of a property
in Leshan City (2017: construction of a property in Leshan City
of approximately HK$113,000 and acquisition of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$30,176,000).

Charges on assets and contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have charges on assets (2017:
Nil) and did not have any material contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had approximately 84 employees
(2017: 192 employees). The Group reviewed employees’ remuneration
from time to time and salary adjustment was normally made on an
annual basis. Special adjustment based on length of service and good
performance could be made at any time when warranted. In addition
to salaries, the Group provided employees’ benefits such as medical
insurance and provident fund. Share options and bonuses were also
available to employees of the Group at the discretion of the directors
and depending upon the financial performance of the Group.

ERBBR

FEBETEEBEBEER  LTHERTH
R BB > ARMBRREEEB AT
2B B INE R E KK - ARHE
REDEFHRS - BEERABBANET - X
TTRAREE - ER LT HAMEETR
BERAERETATIRRBELEZE THEK
AUARFNEIAE - HAKE 2 EENR
PESWERDEFE 2 EWERKEME
AMEFAERRBHZINTE - R-_F—\F
ZA=1T—R AEEHEIHNESH  FE
FER IR E MBI P 2 M BITETR -

AEBTYEFINEERSEBHL KR ERE
ZREHEAINER o

BEAREE
W-ZE-—NE=ZA=+—8 A&EEHEH
BEEYL M —WEZEAAS(ZE—+
F o EEL LT —FTEL 113,000 7T) &
LUK EE — RSP B A B1#930,176,000/8 7T ) A &
BATHYE -

EERARIRAE
RIZB-N\F=ZA=+—H AEELEE
EER( Tt 8) TEENERL
REAB(ZT—LF 8-

EERFMBUR
R-Z-\F=ZA=+—RH AEEHNES4
ZRE(ZZ—+F - 192%EE8) - XEET
R EEFH  —REFHBHFS > I8
FEERHEBREMBERER AR - R
I ARETREEERT - BRERR
BREAES EENAARASEZPBE
BRMBERASE R SR HERBAE RIEAT -

HRERERAT —T— \FER

11



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWL R D

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Yenbo Gain Limited, a company of which 81.82% equity interest is
indirectly owned by the Company, entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement on 25 November 2016 with an independent
third party vendor in respect of the acquisition of 60% equity interest
in Zhifeng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries at a consideration
of RMB36 million in cash (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was
completed on 19 May 2017 (the “Completion”). Details of the
Acquisition and the Completion have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 November 2016 and 19 May 2017
respectively.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group intends to continuously strive to create value for its
shareholders. In addition to the existing business, the Group is also
committed to seeking other development opportunities and will acquire
high quality investment projects with good potential in order to enhance
its investment return.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Great World Company
Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) has been committed to maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance within the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) in order to enhance the transparency
in disclosure of material information. The Board considers such
commitment is essential for internal management, financial
management and protection of shareholders’ interest and believes
that maintaining a high standard of corporate governance benefits all
shareholders, investors and the business of the Company as a whole.
The Company has applied the principles in and complied with the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding the Directors’ transactions in securities of the
Company. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the adopted code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction throughout the year ended
31 March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for reviewing, evaluating and finalising the
Company’s strategies and policies, annual budgets, business plans
and performance, and has full access to adequate, reliable and timely
information on the Group so as to enable them to make a timely
decision. The Board also has the collective responsibility for leadership
and control of, and for promoting the success of, the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

One of the roles of the Board is to protect and enhance shareholders’
interests. The Board acts with integrity and due care for the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders. Leading the Group
in a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts terms of
reference which detail its functions and responsibilities, including,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans and monitoring integrity in the
Company’s conduct of affairs. The management is obliged to supply
the Board with adequate information in a timely manner to enable the
members to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each Director has separate and independent access
to the Group’s senior management to acquire more information and to
make further enquiries if necessary.
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SEERRE

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company. The duties of the Board on corporate
governance functions include developing and reviewing the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management and reviewing the Group’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Yangiang and Ms. Yang Wei, one non-executive director,
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky (chairman of the Board, re-designated from
an executive director with effect from 22 December 2017), and four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan,
Mr. Chan Ying Cheong, Ms. Zhao Yongmei and Dr. Yang Fuyu.

Each Director has different professional and industrial experience,
which enable them to make valuable and diversified advice and
guidance to the Group’s activities and development. Details of the
background and qualifications of the Directors are set out on pages 6
to 7 of this annual report. The Company has received, from each of the
independent non- executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Candidates to be nominated as directors of the Company are
experienced, high calibre individuals. Under the Articles of Association
of the Company, any Director appointed by the Board shall hold office
until the first annual general meeting after his/her appointment and shall
then be subject to re-election by the shareholders. Apart from this,
every Director is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board held a total of 11
board meetings, inclusive of the quarterly regular meetings according
to the CG Code. The attendance of each Director is set out on page
19.
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CHAIRMAN

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky was appointed as the Chairman of the Board in
2007. The primary role of the Chairman is to provide leadership for the
Board and to ensure that the Board works effectively in the discharge
of its responsibilities.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has not appointed a Chief Executive Officer and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business is carried out by the
senior management and monitored by the executive Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees in accordance with the
CG Code, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. These committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able to seek
independent professional advice when appropriate and upon request.
Details of these committees, including their compositions, major
responsibilities and functions, and work performed during the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Ms. Zhao Yongmei and Dr. Yang Fuyu. The Audit
Committee meets with the Group’s senior management regularly
to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems and the
quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

()  making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor
and any resignation and dismissal of that auditor;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;
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(i)

(vi)

#&c:

liaising with the Board, senior management and the auditors to
monitor the integrity of financial statements, the quarterly, interim
and annual reports in particular on accounting policies and
practices and compliance with accounting standards, the GEM
Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to financial
reporting;

reviewing the financial control, internal control and risk
management system to ensure the management of the Company
discharges its duty under an effective internal control system;

reviewing the report and management letter submitted by external
auditor; and considering any findings of major investigations of
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response; and

considering the engagement of external independent consultant
to provide internal audit function and to carry out internal control
review, which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk assessment,
review the internal control system and corporate governance
compliance/practice of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the audit committee reviewed the
financial results, the accounting policies and practices adopted, the
reports of the external independent consultant on internal audit as well
as reviewing the risk management and internal control procedures of
the Group and 5 audit committee meetings were held. The attendance
of each committee member is set out on page 19.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhao Yongmei (chairman of
the Remuneration Committee) and Dr. Yang Fuyu. It reviews and
determines the policy for the remuneration of directors and senior
management of the Group.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i)  conducting regular review of the remuneration policy of Group’s
directors and senior management;

(i)  making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policy;

(i) making recommendation to the Board on remuneration packages
of the Directors;

(iv) determining remuneration packages of senior management
proposed by the Directors that will attract, motivate and retain the
competent staff;

(v) reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;

(vi) reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment or any compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of director for
misconduct; and

(vii) recommending the Board of the structure of long-term incentive

plans for executive Directors and certain senior management.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 2 remuneration committee
meetings were held to review the remuneration package of the
Directors and the senior management of the Company. The attendance
of each committee member is set out on page 19.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhang Yangiang (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ying Cheong
and Dr. Yang Fuyu.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:

(@)

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identifying and nominating for approval of the Board suitably
qualified candidates as additional Directors or to fill Board
vacancies as they arise;

making recommendations to the Board with respect to the re-
election by shareholders of any Director under the relevant
provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association;

assessing the independence of the candidates in the case of
appointment and re-appointment of independent non-executive
Directors having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules in place from time to time; and

assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors on an annual basis having regard to relevant guidelines
or requirements of the GEM Listing Rules in place from time to
time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 2 meetings were held by the
Nomination Committee to review the composition of the Board. The
attendance of each committee member is set out on next page.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT GENERAL MEETINGS
AND BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The following table shows the attendance of Directors at general
meetings and meetings of the Board and Board Committees during the
year ended 31 March 2018:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky (Note)
Mr. Zhang Yangiang

Ms. Yang Wei

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky (Note)

Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Chan Ying Cheong

Ms. Zhao Yongmei

Dr. Yang Fuyu

Note:  Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky has been re-designated from an executive
director to a non-executive director with effect from 22 December 2017.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board delegates
the day-to-day operations to senior staff who are responsible for
different aspects of the operations of the Group.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors in compliance with the CG
Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Training and Support for Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company. The Company will also arrange and provide support
for suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of its Directors. All Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. A form has been provided to each of
the Directors to assist them to record training information for reporting
to the Company as confirmation of training undertaken. The training
information indicate that the Directors have received training and/or
materials on corporate governance and other relevant topics.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible to ensure the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards
and to ensure the published consolidated financial statements should
be issued in a timely manner and can provide a true and fair view of
the business and financial information of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinances that are relevant to its operations.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, the Board has prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the external auditors on financial reporting are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system for the purpose of compliance with the provision
of the CG Code with an aim to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatements, errors, losses or fraud, and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in achieving the Group’s
business objectives.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company in
respect of their services for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as
follows:

FriR AR 3%

Services rendered

Audit services ZH RS
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Internal control is fundamental to the Group’s daily operations. Internal
control is useful to Directors, senior management and other key
personnel who are accountable for control in the Group as well as
acting as a tool in providing Directors and senior management with
information of sufficient quality to make business decisions and meet
their regulatory obligations.

In this connection, Internal Control Policy and Procedures have
been formulated and implemented within the Group with the primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations on a
basic framework of internal control and risk management. The key
objectives of the internal control include:

—  Safeguarding assets

—  Ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial records
and reports

—  Promoting adherence to policies, procedures, regulations and

laws

Promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations
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The Internal Control Policy and Procedures cover, amongst others,
the following material activities — finance, operational and compliance
controls:

Finance

Effective financial control is essential in identifying and managing
liabilities to ensure that the Group is not unnecessarily exposed
to avoidable financial risks as well as safeguarding of assets from
inappropriate use or loss, including the prevention and detention
of fraud and errors. A set of measures has been formulated and
implemented to tighten the control on cash flow. All payments should
be properly checked and approved. Proper accounting and financial
records shall be maintained in supporting financial budgets, periodic
management accounts and reports.

Operational

With regard to the Group’s businesses, different sets of principles
and procedures have been set up for management teams of different
operations to follow. Through the implementation of those principles
and procedures, the operation process became more accountable,
transparent and efficient.

Compliance

The Company has fully complied with the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. Financial reports, announcements and circulars have
been prepared and published in accordance with the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year, the Company engaged an external independent
consultant with professional staff in possession of relevant expertise
(the “Independent Professional Firm”) to perform internal audit function
and to carry out an internal control review, which comprised, inter
alia, enterprise risk assessment and review of the internal control
system of the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The review plan was approved by the Audit Committee
and the Board. Based on the risk assessment and the review of the
internal control system of the Group conducted by the Independent
Professional Firm for the year, no significant risk and control deficiency
was identified. The relevant assessment and review reports have been
considered by the Audit Committee and the Board for assessing the
effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control Systems.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Accounting Function and the internal audit function performed
by the Independent Professional Firm. The Board, through the reviews
made by the Independent Professional Firm and the Audit Committee,
concluded that the Risk Management and Internal Control Systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting
Any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board by mail at Room 1202, 12/F., Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting on a date not more than 28
days after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is given,
the requisitionist(s) him/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the company secretary of the Company by mail at
Room 1202, 12/F., Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The company secretary of the Company is responsible
for forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board’s
direct responsibilities to the Board and communications relating to
ordinary business matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the
relevant executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand
its business better and the way the Company operates. To promote
effective communication with the public at large, the Company
maintains a website (www.gwchl.com) on which comprehensive
information about the Company’s major businesses, financial
information and announcements, annual, quarterly and interim reports
and shareholders circulars are being made available.

The Board is endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. The chairman of the Board and members of the
Board Committees will attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) report
for Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “We”). This report is designed to
allow the shareholders, investors (including potential investors) of the
Company and the public to have a more comprehensive and profound
understanding of the work done on the ESG issues of the Group
for its financial year ended 31 March 2018. This report elaborates
the philosophy and practice in respect of social responsibility and
the achievements it has made in economic, environment and social
aspects. The Group primarily adopts the principles and basis of
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) as its standards, with an aim to establish a sound
environmental, social and governance structure. For information on
the Group’s corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report”.

The management of the Group is responsible for monitoring and
managing ESG-related risks and the effectiveness of the ESG
management system. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group has complied with the “comply and explain” provisions set out
in the ESG Guide.

The board of directors of the Group believes that a sound
environmental, social and governance structure is vital for continued
sustainability and development of the Group’s activities. The Group
is willing to take more responsibilities for the society but with a view
to balancing the shareholders’ interests and the society’s benefits.
We will continue to strengthen its efforts in information collection for
better performance in the ESG areas and broader disclosure of related
information in sustainable development. We welcome any comments
and suggestions on this report as well as the Group’s performance in
sustainability development.
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The summary of material ESG issues, which are covered in this report,
are listed below:

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Al.

Emissions

The Group is principally engaged in property business,
forestry business, landscaping and earth-rock engineering
business and has been persistent in conducting its business
in an environmentally responsible manner and takes
measures to reduce the possible impact on the environment
arising from its production and operating activities. We will
closely monitor our greenhouse gas emissions and energy
consumption and will stay abreast of environment related
regulatory developments in the respective areas where the
Group operates.

In terms of emissions, the Group’s business did not generate
significant emissions, but the monitoring of emissions is still
indispensable. Therefore, we will regularly arrange for the
testing of air emissions.

Air Pollutant Emissions

The pollutants listed in the standard include particulate
matter, sulfur oxides and nitrogen oxides. In addition, the
cars we operate will also generate trace amounts of air
emissions.

Types of emissions

2 95 €/ bl

Nitrogen oxides
REty

Sulfur oxides
=Rl
Particulates matter
ERYE

ABEMRENERRE  HEREREE
MEWMT :

A.

BAHE
1. B

AEBIBREMERE  MEX
B REXEREATT TIRERS

B —EEFUERRAENSTR
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B EDNERRMNEERED
M BEIRIBRE - W& T RREAREE
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The main sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions and removals were from Scope 1 (direct emission
from the mobile combustion sources) and Scope 2 (“energy
indirect” emission from the acquired electricity) and Scope 3
(other indirect emissions):

Scope of Greenhouse Gas

Emissions/Removals

Emission/
Removal Sources

BERBHNRREE BB BRIR

Scope 1

#E1

Direct Emission Combustion of fuel in mobile

sources

HEYEW B EIRIREL B IR B

GHG Deduction Removals from planted trees

= REEHR TERIRBR

Scope 2

#E2

Indirect Emission Purchased electricity

EE37 HES

Scope 3

#E3

Other Indirect Emission Paper waste disposed at

landfills

HAb MR EEIMEREAER
Travelling
ZIR

Total

Bt
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BRI

Emission/Removal
in tonnes of CO,

BB BB
(W =S 1bHx)

655.31

(5,249.21)

30.40

0.16

3.98

(4,559.36)

Intensity

(per employee)
RE
(BEER)

11.91 tonnes CO,
11.91M8 — &1L

(95.44) tonnes CO,
(95.44)W8 — &4 tﬁ}x

0.55 tonnes CO,
0.55MF — 41 bﬁ}x

0.003 tonnes CO,
0.003M8 — ALk

0.07 tonnes CO,
0.07Ma — 41 bﬁr

(82.90) tonnes CO,
(82.90)WE — &4 bﬁ}x



Energy Saving and Emission Reduction

The Group is committed to mitigating, through enhancing
efficiency and implementing environmental initiatives, its
indirect, negative impact on the environment from operation.
The Group have implemented the following measures to
minimize the use of energy:

— Increasing the application of natural light;
—  Adopting the use of LED lighting system;

—  Operating a high-efficiency motor unit when replacing
the machine;

—  Turning off lights and unnecessary energy-consuming
devices when employees leave to reduce energy;

- Maintaining the temperature of the air-conditioner at a
suitable level, cleaning the air-conditioner and ventilation
equipment regularly to conserve power;

—  Vigorously creating “paperless” office by encouraging
the use of electronic documents, double-sided printing
and recycling paper to reduce paper printing and
consumption; and

—  Promoting the use of telephone or video conferencing
system for Directors’ and employees’ communication
to decrease the frequency of business trips.

Hazardous Waste and Non-hazardous Waste

The Group did not generate any hazardous waste during
the reporting year. Non-hazardous waste from the Group’s
operation was mainly office paper.

The total amount of non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group during the reporting year was approximately 0.0344
tonnes, with an intensity of approximately 0.0006 tonnes per
employee.

During the year, there was also no incident of non-
compliance with local relevant environmental laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to air and greenhouse gas, emissions, discharge
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
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A2. Use of Resources

To encourage effective utilization of resources, the Group’s
management will review and develop management policy
regarding the use of energy and resources, which manages
consumption of chemical pesticide, fertilizer, electricity, water
and office paper.

Energy Consumption

The energy used in the Group’s business operations is
mainly consumption of purchased electricity. The Group
consumed a total of 36,065 kWh with an intensity of
656 kWh per employee during the reporting year.

Water Consumption

For the administrative office, the Group consumes water in
the office from a centralized water and sanitation system
implemented in the building. The cost of water consumption
of the Group is inclusive in the monthly rent, and the building
management does not individually measure the water
consumption of each tenant and hence no relevant data
can be collected. In spite of this, we strive to reduce water
consumption in daily operation by encouraging employees
to turn taps off tightly to prevent dripping of water and giving
priority to effective water-saving products.

To enhance the efficiency of water consumption and reduce
waste water, the Group adopted a drip irrigation system,
which help to achieve water conservation by reducing
evaporation and deep drainage. Apart from using the
purchased water, we also use rain water in the planting
operation.

A total of 147,637,000 liters of water was consumed for
forestry planting during the reporting year, with an intensity
of 70 liters per tree. There is no issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose. Nevertheless, the Group reminds employees
to practice water conservation in daily operations.

Packaging Materials
The Group’s business operations did not involve any
packaging materials during the reporting year.
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A3S.

Chemical pesticide and fertilizer

Pesticide
53
Fertilizer
{ERE

The pesticide used in planting forest is to prevent pests of
diseases and the fertilizer used is to stabilize the growth of
the tree in some areas of the land which is lack of nutrition.

The use of pesticide and fertilizer was thoughtful considered
and determined by relevant expert. It will not bring significant
effect to the environment and is in compliance of the local
regulations and law.

Environment and natural resources

The Group constantly assesses and monitors the
environmental risks in its daily operation, and formulates
corresponding mitigation measures promptly when
discovering any potential risk to the environment, so as
to ensure such risk can be controlled and reduced to an
acceptable level. The Group is committed to making efficient
use of natural resources and reducing waste.

To protect the natural environment of the forest, the Group
has perform the following:

Regularly inspection and evaluation

The Group has conduct regularly inspection on unauthorized
activities or illegal logging, fire hazard, pest or diseases, etc.
Any issues observed would be handled at the forest and
remediation or rectification works will be done timely.

Government involvement

The Government has standard measures and regular
engagement on the Group’s forest in terms of fire prevention
and pest control practices. The Group cooperated with
local government to perform pest control spray and fire
prevention.

Positive effect of our business to the environment

In Xinjiang and Angola, desertification issue made destruction
to the environment. Our business, planting forest, is an
effective way to prevent desertification and sandstorm, and
bring significant benefit to the environment.

67,470,800.00

A3.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS

B1.

B2.

Employment and Labour Practices

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable assets
and core competitive advantage of the Group. The Group
aims to provide employees with respectful and fair working
environment through maintaining a sound system of human
resources management covering the various aspects such
recruitment and remuneration.

The recruitment and promotion of the Group are fair and
open for all employees, and are not affected by age, sex,
physical or mental health status, marital status, family status,
race, skin colour, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation and other factors. In order to provide a
good and fair working environment and safeguard the well-
being of the employees, the Group seriously considers all
those valuable opinions from the employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to
attract and retain talents. Remuneration packages are
reviewed periodically based on the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and market information. The
Group aims to reward and motivate the contribution and
performance of employees and assist them in their career
development and promotion within the Group.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and
regulations in the localities of its operation, and the relevant
administrative rules and measures are strictly enforced.
These rules and regulations specify the requirements relating
to employment, labor relations, employees’ remuneration,
social insurances, housing fund, mandatory provident fund
and welfare to protect the rights of employees.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to protecting the health and safety
of the employees and the community, we require employees
to comply with all relevant occupational health and safety
regulations, and do our utmost to provide them with safe
and healthy working environment.
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Risk management is an important part of ensuring
occupational safety. We can identify and assess
occupational health and safety risks through identification
of the source of danger, assessment of identified risks, and
appropriate risk control measures. If there are significant
risks in the operation of the Group, we will definitely eliminate
or reduce the risks with maximum effort, do our best to
reduce personal hazards and property losses, and maximize
the value of the Company by minimizing the cost of risks.

In order to avoid accidents and ensure that all employees
work in a safe manner, we implement established policies
and guidelines for different working conditions and needs
which stipulates clearly the safety procedures as well as
emergency response plans. Those established policies and
guidelines will be reviewed periodically and further improved
to better protect our employees. At the same time, first
aid kit is available at each workplace to ensure that any
employee who is injured or ill at work can receive immediate
attention.

We have also conducted a comprehensive fire drill and
emergency drill. Through actual drills, employees’ ability to
escape and save themselves at the scene of the fire was
enhanced, employees’ use of fire-extinguishing tools was
improved, and everything was done to reduce human and
property losses.

The Group do acknowledge the potential health issues
that exist in office settings. Hence we do take measures to
preserve our talents from exposure to occupational diseases
or injuries, no matter severe or minor. The Group motivates
our staff to achieve work-life balance. The Group has offered
various facilities in the office to address the health and safety
needs of our employees, encompassing:

— installing air purifiers in areas where are relatively
crowded such as conference and meeting rooms;

— ensuring ample space between workstations and clean
and tidy common space such as corridors and pantry;

— maintaining sufficient ventilation and lighting system in
the offices; and

—  offering adjustable chairs and monitor screens for eye
protection at each individual workstation.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no breach of
relevant laws and regulations relating to employee’s health
and safety.
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B3.

B4.

Development and Training

Talent development is an important part of our human
resource strategy. The Group understand that the
employees’ knowledge and skills are essential to the Group’s
operation and business growth, good development plan
lays a good foundation for the employees to face business
challenge in the future, it also helps them to grasp promotion
opportunities, fulfill their career aspiration.

The Group provide the employees with effective training
and develop a clear promotion ladder, ensuring that the
employees have the required skills. The Group conducts
performance evaluation annually, and based on the
assessment result to provide the staff with appropriate
training, and offer job development and promotion
opportunities for outstanding employees.

The Group encourages employees to attend comprehensive
professional training to deliver top services to our customers.
The newly hired employees are required to attend Employee
Orientation to familiarize with the Group’s mission, vision,
core value and business goals.

Details of competencies are kept on employees’ personnel
files. Regular performance appraisal will be carried out to
ensure the requirements of employees are met.

Labor Standards

The Group’s employment policies in regard to prohibiting
child and forced labour are implemented to respond to the
local employment laws and regulations. The recruitment
process of the Group is strictly abided by the guidelines of
the Human Resource Department. No child nor forced labor
in the Company’s operation during the reporting year.

Prior to confirmation of employment, the Group’s human
resources department will require job applicants to provide
a valid identity documents to verify that the applicants are
lawfully employable, and ensure full compliance of relevant
laws and regulations that prohibit child and forced labour.
Furthermore, staff undergoing unfair treatment can report to
the Group through whistleblowing policy.

The Group has no tolerance for the use of forced labour or
child labour in our business operations. The Group enters
into employment contract with each of its employees in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
localities of its operation.
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B5.

B6.

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches importance to developing and
maintaining long-term relationships with our suppliers, looking
forward to forming long-term partnerships with them. We
take a fair and open principle on procurement of materials
and services. We support and encourage the suppliers
to promote efficient use of resources and environmental
protection and fulfill corporate social responsibility. The
Group also conducts follow-up assessment on the suppliers,
and, if necessary, reviews them through a third-party
organization.

The Group could not achieve sustainable development
without working together with its suppliers. The Group has
formulated supplier assessment systems and conducted
regular assessments of the environmental and social
performance of suppliers. These systems guarantee the
quality of raw material and equipment used in the production
of the Group and strengthens the Group’s relationship with
suppliers so as to create a beneficial cooperation together.
On-site evaluations would be conducted regularly by the
Group to assess the performance of social responsibilities of
suppliers. For instance, if suppliers have violations of labor
regulations, including employment of child labor, forced
labor, etc., the Group would immediately terminate the
cooperation with them.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing customers with
high-quality products and services and settling customer
complaints effectively, continuously improving service level
and ensuring customer satisfaction.

The Group attaches great importance to corporate reputation
to ensure good product and service quality through internal
control and avoid leakage of personal data of customers. We
have established a sales management system to monitor the
sales process. By identifying customers’ requirements on our
products and services, we negotiate with them on prices,
quantity, quality and delivery schedule prior to entering into
sales contracts. Subsequently, we will follow up the delivery
process to ensure that our products fulfill the terms under
the sales contracts. We will collect customers’ feedback
through various communication channels before, during and
after the delivery processes. Customers’ feedback is used as
the benchmark to evaluate our quality assurance system and
we will take rectification measures when needed.
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e

The Group strictly abides by the regulation regarding the
collection, processing and use of the information collected
from our customers and business partners. When signing a
contract with a customer or a business partners, a term on
confidentiality of their information will be included to avoid
disclosure of their information. Employees are obligated to
retain in confidence any information obtained in connection
with their employment, including but not limited to trade
secrets, client information, supplier information and other
proprietary information.

The Group has been in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which had a material impact on our business
operation and has not been assessed any fines or penalties
with regard to product safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to our products for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Anti-Corruption

The Group advocates a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and has no tolerance of corruption
or bribery in any form. The Group strictly adheres to the laws
and regulations in regard to anti-corruption and bribery in all
locations where the Group is conducting business.

The Group has complied with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
(Financial Institutions) Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other relevant laws in regions in which the
Group invests.

All directors, management and employees of the Group are
required to abide by the Group’s regulations. We encourage
the reporting of suspected business irregularities and provide
clear channels specifically for this purpose.

The Group is committed to adhering the highest ethical
standards. During the reporting year, the Group was not
involved in any litigation regarding corruption, bribery, fraud
or money-laundering. The Group will continue to comply with
the relevant laws and regulations both in Hong Kong, China
and Angola.
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Community Investment

The Group recognized the importance of fulfilling corporate
social responsibilities. We will continue to seek possible
ways of promoting the awareness of community care and
helping each other through coordinating various activities
which are suitable to our identity and cater to the needs
from the community. We believe that these activities, such
as donation, voluntary work, mentorship programs, will help
create a better and stronger relationship between the Group
and the community, thereby contributing to our sustainable
development.

In order to enable sustainable development of the Group, it
is inseparable from the support of the community and the
people. As a responsible Group, we continue to practice
public welfare, actively participate in various charitable and
social charities, and care for disadvantaged communities.

The Group strives to minimize potential negative social
impacts while promoting opportunities and benefits for host
communities. Our community responsibility policies include:

—  Continually improving community development and
community investment programs through monitoring,
measuring and managing our social and economic
impacts;

— Developing programs that ensure the sustainable
welfare of communities;

- Upholding and promoting the human rights of our
employees and contractors, our suppliers, and the
communities in which we operate;

— Recognizing and respecting indigenous people’s
culture, heritage and traditional rights and supporting
the identification, recording, management and
protection of indigenous cultural heritage;

—  Building and maintaining stakeholder relationships with
people who are directly affected or interested in our
operations; and

—  Managing the risk of public health threats amongst
employees, contractors and local communities.
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Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

The directors of Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”)
submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s performance, business activities and
development is included in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 5
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 to 9 of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on page 57.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
and page 61 in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
respectively.

The Company has no balance of distributable reserves available for
distribution to the owners of the Company as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Details of the movements in investment property of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five
financial years are summarised on page 167.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of
its shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association and there is no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s total issued shares as required under the GEM
Listing Rules.
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ESEEHE

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S PLACING BEARADNRREFRORITEREE 2

OF NEW SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(1) Placing of 65,000,000 new shares on 2 July 2015

FRERERR

Net proceeds from the Company’s placing of 65,000,000 new shares at the placing price of HK$0.62 per share,
after deducting the placing commission and other related expenses, were approximately HK$39.9 million.

(1) R=Z2—HF+t A= HBLE65,000,000 37 13

RNBREERES REMHERMNN R - AR RREEEZ0.62/8 7T AL 565,000,000 #1 I (7 2 PS5 IBF R4

#$39,900,000/ 7T ©

Intended use of proceeds

FFig sk REEE 8

Enhance the Group’s general working capital base for
developing the existing business and preparing to take up
investment opportunities in the future with readily available
funds.

BAARGE -—REEECEN  FUBRERAEHLA
BENE S /SARTIEM BRI LR -
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Actual use of proceeds up to 31 March 2018
BE-FE-N\F=ZA=1+—HZHEHEERFZ

The Group used approximately HK$3 million for operating
expenses during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$36.9
million has not been utilised as at 31 March 2018. The
Directors intend to use the amount for working capital of
the Group and future investments and/or developments
of the Group.
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ESEEHE

(2) Placing of new convertible notes in an aggregate principal of HK$110 million on 30 March 2015
Net proceeds from the Company’s placing of new convertible notes in an aggregate principal of HK$110 million,
after deduction the placing commission and other related expenses, were approximately HK$109.2 million.

2 N-B—HFE=ZA=+HEBEAXE£45$£5110,000,0008 T2 IRKREE
RIIBREEMS R EMBRERE Y% - AARERE RS A H/5110,000,000/8 7T 2 5 Al AR ENE 2 FTS RO R4

#109,200,000/8 7T °

Intended use of proceeds

PS5k REEE 8

As to (i) HK$37.5 million to be used for settlement of
the consideration of HK$37.5 million in connection
with the acquisition of shares in Yenbo Gain Limited; (i)
approximately HK$2.1 million to be used for settlement of
the balance of the consideration of approximately HK$2.1
million in connection with the acquisition of shares in Yenbo
Gain Limited; and (i) approximately HK$69.6 million to be
used for working capital of the Group (including but not
limited to the repayment of borrowings of the Group and/or
future investments and/or developments of the Group).

(i) 37,500,000 T # RIEEN BBWERERERARRK
3 237,500,000/ TLRAE + (i#£72,100,0007%8 7T #5% F 1EE 1~
ERERBREN AR QRN #2,100,0008 TR B
K (iii)#969,600,000/8 T i FEA S E 2 £ EE & (BIFET
RAREEAEEEER UAEBRKIEER,HEE)

Actual use of proceeds up to 31 March 2018
BE-FE-NFZA=1+—HZHEHEEREZ

The net proceeds in the sum of HK$39.6 million was used
as payment of the consideration in connection with the
acquisition of shares in Yenbo Gain Limited.

An amount of HK$24,276,000 was used as cash
consideration in connection with the acquisition of 51%
equity interest of Best Sky Holdings Limited.

A sum of HK$10 million was used as payment of
deposits, which was applied as part of the consideration
on completion, in connection with the acquisition of 60%
issued share capital of Zhifeng Holdings Limited.

The balance of approximately HK$35.3 million had been
used for operating expenses of the Group during the years
ended 31 March 2016, 2017 and 2018.
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At the date of this annual report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan as to use of proceeds. The unused net proceeds
were placed with banks in Hong Kong.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence and has been
reviewed by the remuneration committee.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are determined by
the remuneration committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out below
and in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

2012 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012 (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”), which is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 3 August 2012, upon the termination of the
share option scheme adopted at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 2 August 2002.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme enables the Company to grant
options to selected persons to subscribe for shares in the Company as
incentives or rewards for their contributions or potential contributions
to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, invite (i) any director or
any employee of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested
entity; (i) any holder of legal or beneficial title of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (iii) any business
or joint venture partner, contractor, subcontractor, agent, sub-agent of
the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional services to any member of the Group or any
invested entity; and (v) any supplier of goods or services, customer or
distributor of the Group or any invested entity, to take up options to
subscribe for the shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$10
per each lot of share options granted.

The option period shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
option. There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. HK$10 is payable on acceptance of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme or the date of approval by the shareholders in general
meeting where the limit is refreshed. The total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted to each individual in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
at the date of grant unless approval from Company’s shareholders
has been obtained. Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non- executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares
in issue or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified option
period. The exercise price shall be determined by the Directors, and
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to
time.

Movements of the share options granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

Exercise price Asat

Participants Date of grant Exercisable period pershare 1 April 2017

Bk R-R-tf

S8AL RiAE 8 %R mA-A

Employees and others 4 February 2016 4 February 2016 - HKS0.264 112,000,000

(inaggregate) 6 January 2026
EEREM (A3 ZF-FCARA ZE-RE-ARAE 0264
ZEINE-ARA

BIEZT - FERETEI R 2 BARE
BRZBNBE - G TBBBZZS—=F
PR ERT B A B A AR R A IR R K2
B ERE BB BEITRN10% © BrIEEUS
AARRELAE  REERDAH(BEZ
B) IR+ @A ARERALTE LB
R BRERITERD BT REEIT R
NHEE - TNMSBBERRE A EEITRG
1% c BPARBEERRABILIERNTTES
REZEZHE R ERENBE DT
%17 #8250.1% + (B (BB 15,000,000/ 7T -
BB B S EIS AN A RIIRER AL o

BARER N IE T B E R E NBERTTE - 1T
FEERESET  ELATNI=8F2&
2% (\NEHBHZARRRMGUHE : (i)
EEROAPIAMEEER ZARRRGF
BHUTE  Rii)ARARRMEE - BRE-F
—ZFERERT S EA R B A EIFT
BREMEFTEZATEBRRE - RITER
BERIT 2R EE LR - NMSHBBATKE %
T2 AR ERD30% °

5 = — = AR BT IR L AR
HEWT -

No. of underlying shares comprised in option

ABREZRBRGHA
Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
during during during during ~ at 31 March
the year the year the year the year 2018
R-B-N\F
ZA=t-A
AT
RERRL  RERGE  REAXN  REAEE  BREZE
S = - - 112,000,000
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky (Chairman, re-designated as
a Non-executive Director on 22 December 2017)

Mr. Zhang Yanqgiang

Ms. Yang Wei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky (Chairman, re-designated from
an executive Director on 22 December 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Chan Ying Cheong

Ms. Zhao Yongmei

Dr. Yang Fuyu

Change in the composition of the Board and other positions of
Directors

Changes in the composition of the Board and other positions of
Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky has been re-designated from an Executive
Director (“ED”) to a Non-executive Director (“NED”) of the Company
with effect from 22 December 2017.

Biographical details of directors
Brief biographical details of directors are set out on pages 6 to 7 of this
annual report.

Rotation

Pursuant to Articles 100 and 117 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky and Mr. Zhang Yangiang will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018

=
RAFENEEAREAPZARRESER

BTES

REBUL(TE R-F—tF1+-A
T HBERHFHTEE)
RARELE

B L

FHTES
REBUL(TE R-F—tF1+-A
T HEABITEFEIRHNTEE)

BYFHITES
BERLLE
BRIESTE
izl S R
BEREL

ESENEAGZRDRES  HMBREK

EZeBHEARNAFENEEARERH
ZEPREFZ HMBHLT

REBLICHARARTER([HTE
FDREFATEF((FATES)) - A=
T—tFF+ A=+ HBEK-

EEEREHE
EEERHENAFRFOAETA -

BESER
RIBEARRB 2 ABERMAAFE 100211715 -
REBRL T RERKBIEEFRERERRBF
AE R WEBERREEERET -



Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has entered
into an appointment letter with the Company for a term of two years
and each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year; all
appointment letters are subject to renewal with early termination clause
in accordance with the removal, retirement and re-election provisions
of Articles of Association of the Company.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract with the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts or arrangements subsisting which a Director
was materially interested and which was significant in relation to the
business of the Group at any time during the year ended 31 March
2018.
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Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, the underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which the Directors and chief
executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EEoER

R_ZE—NE=ZA=+—8 BERARQT
FBITHABRARR K HE AR EE(E
ERBHERBERN([EFHRBERADE
XVER) 2 B ~ HERERR D REHFEEIRIEE
AR R IEHIEXVERSE 7 R ES D BME K
AR MBIz ERNER (BREESE AR
RIEBITHABREER RPERHZEZIE
MR ENEERE 2 ERmRER)  ALA
RATIRIEES MBAEENESGTECE
A - RAREGEM TR B $5.46%5.67
KEMERARI MBSz SR EAIT

RAEQFRBRABROFEZRR

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and the underlying shares

BREEMETZEBRRARABRAHE

Personal
Name of Directors interest
EEng BARES

Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky -

REBUL

Note: These shares are held by Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd. of which Ms. Ng
Mui King, Joky is the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, the underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which the Directors and
chief executive of the Company were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was any of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives (including their spouses or children under
18 years of age) of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has taken and maintained directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the year, providing appropriate cover for certain
legal actions which may be brought against its directors and officers.

INTEREST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, save as disclosed below, so far is known to the
Directors and chief executives of the Company, no person (other than
a Director or a chief executive of the Company) has an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which will
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or, who
is directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstance at
general meetings of any member of the Group.

Long positions in shares of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
RR®EEB E-07)

Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd. (Note 1) Beneficial owner
Gold City Assets Holdings Ltd.(#7z£7) ERBAA

Mr. Huang Shih Tsai (Note 2) Beneficial owner
B BEEEHE2) EaEA

)
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Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

Notes:

1. Gold City Assets Holding Ltd. is a company incorporated on the British
Virgin Islands of which the issued share capital is beneficially owned by Ms.
Ng Mui King, Joky, a non-executive Director of the Company.

2. The shares held by Mr. Huang Shih Tsai (“Mr. Huang”) were allotted on 15
August 2011 as partial consideration for the acquisition of 100% equity
interest in a company wholly-owned by Mr. Huang.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) nor any of their respective close associates that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or, of any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
99.7% of the Group’s total sales for the year and sales to the Group’s
largest customer amounted to approximately 64.4%.

The Group has 5 suppliers who accounted for 100% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year and purchases from the Group’s largest
supplier amounted to approximately 61.1% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

At any time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had an interest in any of the Group’s major customers or suppliers.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant events after the year are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

ESEEHE

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.

The term of office of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will expire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-
appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors
of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Mui King, Joky
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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31/F, Gloucester Tower &5
_ The Landmark IR
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HLB dﬁ]’ g :1' A $c’}i ) 75L_F§_/‘; :;J 11 Pedder Street EFTE115%
odgson Impey eng Limite o = e
Hong Kong HEERTITREIE
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT BB RS
To the shareholders of it KIEERBRA A
Great World Company Holdings Ltd FEENRER

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Great World
Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 166, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B 2B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment property
Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
HREBEAER

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has investment
property with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$63,789,000.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is
determined by adopting the valuation techniques with
significant unobservable inputs, assumptions of market
conditions and judgements. The Group also engaged
independent qualified professional firms of valuers
to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques.

Due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the
significant assumptions and judgements involved in the
valuation, valuation of investment property is identified as a
key audit matter.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMNEZNMEERREETSE
Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s

determination of the valuation of investment property
included:

e  evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity
of the valuers;

e assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

e challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and

industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Carrying amounts of properties held for sale
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has properties held for
sale located in the People’s Republic of China with the
carrying amounts of approximately HK$95,971,000.

The properties are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value on an individual property basis. Net
realisable value is estimated at the actual or estimated
selling price less estimated costs to be incurred and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sales. The
determination of net realisable value with reference to
the valuation performed by the independent qualified
professional firm of valuers require management
judgement.

R-ZZE—N\F=A=+—"H BEERPEARLNEH
BB R E A4195,971,000/6 THRHEH EME -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEBANERNARERRETEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
determination of the valuation of properties held for sale
included:

e conducting site visits to properties held for sale
projects to observe the development progress and
evaluating whether the development progress for
each project was consistent with the development
plan;

e  evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity
of the valuers;

e assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

e assessing the reasonableness of the costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and costs incurred for
the properties held for sale;

e challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

We found the carrying amounts of properties held for sale
were supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill
Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
HBRETEE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has goodwill of
approximately HK$39,516,000 relating to the forestry
business and landscaping and earth-rock engineering
business.

Management performed impairment assessment of
forestry business and landscaping and earth-rock
engineering business and concluded that impairment loss
on goodwill associated with landscaping and earth-rock
engineering business of approximately HK$5,278,000 was
recognised.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEBANELNARERRETSE

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

e  evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity
of the valuers;

e assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

e challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and

industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

We found the key assumptions made by the management
were supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of biological assets
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

The Group’s biological assets were acquired from
acquisition of subsidiaries at the acquisition date, its
initial fair value of approximately HK$53,131,000. At
31 March 2018, the biological assets were carried at
approximately HK$46,542,000 as at 31 March 2018 with
a loss arising from change in fair value less costs to sell
of biological assets for the year ended 31 March 2018
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
of approximately HK$10,519,000.

The biological assets were significant to the Group.
Management’s assessment of the fair value of biological
assets involve significant judgements and estimates. The
most significant assumptions and valuation parameters
used in the valuation include the estimated quantities, age
and the related market prices of biological assets applied.
Independent external valuations were obtained in order to
support management’s estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FREMNFRNAEERRETEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
determination of the valuation of biological assets included:

e  evaluating the competency, capability and objectivity
of the valuers;

e assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the relevant industry and using our
valuation experts;

e  discussing with the independent external valuer and
challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
and valuation parameters used in the valuation based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

e checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3 A% B RN R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the content of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3% B A R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3 A% B RN R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Gain on bargain purchase

Loss arising from changes in fair value
less costs to sell of biological assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Finance costs

Loss before tax

Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Wegs

HEMA

EF

H At Yoz
fEREE < Y
EMEEZ A ERE
B B R TS R
HERHEERESR

$HE B SHAK AR
TTER e EoAth & 38 RS2

FREERIE R
PrSTiE R

TEEER

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: AT ELAFEE

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Basic and diluted loss per share

(B518) %R -
ZA/NCIEZE DN
TR ER

BREARBHER

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
pEa FrET F#T
5 66,892 55,122
(64,783) (50,000)

2,109 5,122

5 107 81
362 =

18 (10,519) =
16 (5,278) (5,202)
(318) (54)

(19,679) (15,114)

7 (2,215) (3,939)
8 (35,431) (19,106)
9 433 627
(34,998) (18,479)

(38,756) (17,822)

3,758 (657)

(34,998) (18,479)

12 (1.64)HK cents Bfll  (0.77) HK cents /il

BER P B AR AR B A RS RS 2 L RCRE D
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEakHEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_ZT—)\F=ZA=+—HLLFE

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year:
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REEZREE

AFEEEMEEUKE,

(E18) :

Hig@ &I AR
ZIAR :
BEBINRBEL

ZERERR

AEEHMEEKE(ER)

FEEEZHEBRARE

LT EL2E(EE),
Was 4828 -
AAREEA AN
el
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(34,998) (18,479)
23,888 (8,773)
23,888 (8,7793)
(11,110) (27,252)
(20,120) (25,786)
9,010 (1,466)
(11,110) (27,252)

BEPM BT RE a2 F

A ImR ARED



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e R R

As at 31 March 2018
R-Z—N\FE=A=+—H

Non-current assets

Land use rights

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Goodwill

Biological assets

Prepayment

Current assets

Properties held for sale
Biological assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank deposits

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to directors

Amounts due to related companies

Amounts due to non-controlling
interests
Income tax payable

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Amount due to a shareholder
Convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

FRBEE
TR

W% - BB KREE
REME

mE

EMEE
BNHA

RBEE
S H(shel=/ES
EWEE

TR LS B 35K e LA B LUK TR

Be RRITER

REAE

&5 BR AR B ELAL PR AN 5R0R

FENEEFR
FEfRE R AR
HANEISEe St/

e FR1S

REBEEFE

FRBEE
FE R R /IR
QR ES
EEFBRE

BEFE

Notes

Hrat

13
14
15
16
18
19

17
18
19
20

21
22
22

22

22
23
24

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrET F#T
6,176 =
13,013 2,083
63,789 57,534
39,516 44,794
42,103 =
- 6,309
164,597 110,720
95,971 86,279
4,439 -
56,908 75,447
59,116 62,731
216,434 224,457
(35,001) (17,982)
(6,576) (6,576)
(59,543) (53,615)
(2,319) =
() 81)
(103,448) (78,254)
112,986 146,203
(69,414) (69,414)
(27,817) (25,606)
(21,896) (20,190)
(119,127) (115,210)
158,456 141,713
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2018
R-Z—N\FE=A=+—H

Capital and reserves BAREHE
Share capital [N
Reserves (]

Equity attributable to owners of the RATEEAEGER
Company
Non-controlling interests FERER

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2018 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Ng Mui King, Joky
RER
Director

EZE

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FrET F#T
25 23,689 23,689
87,017 107,110

110,706 130,799

47,750 10,914

158,456 141,713

LEEAYBRREEZTEN T \FX
AZtNABEERZRERNE - HATAL

RERBE

Zhang Yangiang
Director

EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BAEBRSHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

At 1 Aprl 2016

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Redeemed upon maturity of convertible note

Conversion of convertible notes

At 31 March 2017 and at 1 April 2017

Total comprehensive income/foss)

for the year

Changes in ownership interests
in a subsicliary upon desmed

disposal without loss of control (note 32)

Non-controling interests arising

on acquistion of subsidiaries (note 31)

At 31 March 2018

R=E-~ERA-A

AEELTERER

RUARREERERD
AETERZE

RoE-tE=A=1-H
R-Z-t#mA-A

RERRENE/ (BR)
45

TRERAEEHENE
[FH ERR A EAA
WRAERERY iy

RN ATEL
FERER (51

RZZ-NEZA=1-A

Attributable to owners of the Company
ROTREARL
Convertible Share Non-
Share Share  notes equity options  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TEREE
Rx  RGEE  RERE BRERE  ERRE  ZHEE Mt FEREE 3t
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
7T TETL TAT AT 7T T AT T 7L
19,039 200,789 35,144 11513 (3,339 (128502 134,645 12,380 147,025
= = = = (7.94) (17:822) (26,786) (1,466) (27,252)
- - (6:430) - - 6,430 - - -
4,650 32,550 (15,260) - - - 21,940 - 21,940
23,689 233,339 13454 11513 (11,302 (139,894) 130,799 10914 141,713
- - - - 18,636 (38,756) (20,120) 9,010 (11,110)
- - - - - il 7 463 490
- - - - - - - 27,363 27,363
23,689 233,339 13454 11,518 3% (178,623) 110,706 47,750 158,456

HRERERAT —T— \FER

61



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
:%ﬂ? =] IE ﬁ JILEE iFZ
For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE_E-N\F=ZA=T—HIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of land use rights
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill
Loss arising from changes in fair value
less costs to sell of biological assets
Gain on bargain purchase
Shares-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Increase in properties held for sale

Decrease in biological assets

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received on bank deposits

Payment of deposit for acquisition of a
subsidiary

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition
of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

REXG 2 RERE
BRI AR
FRA T IR B %
RITH S WA
B

ME - BELREBITE

-+
R AER

AR ATEED
LB AT (S5 18
SO E 2 U

B (KB

LEACEBR I LER
TRE

REH &R 2B
EMEERD

R M Bl R I L e B LK R
FEAS BRSNS L At FE A BB
¥Ehn

REEECRSE
ENHE

REXREEZ
REFH

REXBRERE
BEUERTTIFFFE
WiE—KW B AR
ZRENR
BEYE BEIRERE

WEEHT B ARIELE
ZBEE M FE

REXBERA RS FHE
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Htat FrET F#T
(35,431) (19,106)

9 (7)

2,215 3,939

790 374

74 =

5,278 5,202

10,519 =

(362) =

7,121 812

(9,805) (8,786)

(297) (35)

6,415 =

23,404 3,823

13,527 12,412

33,244 7,414

(6) (5)

33,238 7,409

9 7

- (10,000)

(2,290) 6)

31 (38,545) =
(40,826) (9,999)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
:%ﬂ'\ =] IE ﬁ JILEE %
For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE_E-N\F=A=T—HLEFE

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary
without lost of control

Repayment to directors

Advance from related companies

Advance from non-controlling interests

Repayment to related companies

Repayment to a shareholder

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank deposits

Notes

Hrat

BEERCHESHRE
BERAFE
HE—KMBRR(TRE
5 ) K FTAS 5RIR 32
BITES
REEER R
KB FEIERRE R A EA K
BRTEEQR]
EBRTRE

MEXKEL (£H)
ZEREFE

RERRELEEVZRD

R

FHAZRERREEEY

INEERBB R

FRZAERBESEEY

RERREFEW 2O
e MRITHER 20

2018 2017
—E-N\F —=—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

(@) -

490 -

- 2,727)

5,928 -
1,037 -

- (2,264)

- (122)

7,451 (5,113)

(137) (7,703)
62,731 70,718

(3,478) (284)
59,116 62,731
59,116 62,731
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Great World Company Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office, and head office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (‘HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except otherwise indicated.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a
number of all the new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective for annual periods
beginning from 1 April 2017. A summary of the new and revised
HKFRSs applied by the Group is set out as follows:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
relating to amendments to
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

HKFRSs (Amendments)

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(E_ T \F=ZA=t—HILFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also
require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (i) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior years. Apart from the additional disclosure
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated
financial positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle except HKFRS 12
(Amendments)’

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK (IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration'

HK (IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with earlier application permitted.

H Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021,
with earlier application permitted.

% Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 which is relevant to the Group is in
relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it
is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs
and other items that subject to the impairment provisions upon
application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

However, the directors do not anticipate that the application of
the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will have material
impact to the opening accumulated losses as at 1 April 2018.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus
agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised
in the respective reporting periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and operating cash
flows respectively by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,368,000 as disclosed in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$348,000 and refundable rental
deposits received of approximately HK$41,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may be
adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are considered
as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received
would be considered as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

Except disclosed above, the directors do not anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial performance and
consolidated financial positions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment property
and biological assets that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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(b)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement
date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

(©

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

®  has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition- related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

(d)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as gain on bargain
purchase.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

()

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries without change of control

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (the “CGUS”)
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUSs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal (or any of the CGU within group of
CGUs in which the Group monitors goodwill).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(h)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the ordinary course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Rental income is recognised over periods of the respective
leases on a straight-line basis.

Revenue generated from sale of goods are recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.

Services income from landscaping and earth-rock
engineering services is recognised when the services are
rendered and completed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the excepted life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

(i)

Employee benefits

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is
a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000 currently. The Group’s contributions to the
scheme are expensed as incurred and vested in accordance
with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions is used
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the government of the PRC is
to make the specified contributions under the schemes.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

(i)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment expense

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share-based payment expenses granted to consultants
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses (unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets).

3. XE
U]

SRR (&)

EEREA(E)

BREMFFHZ

e 8 MR ELRBHE M AL
AR AR 2 4 B B B0 15 SRR R
HESEET AN HERE -

NEBRAIFMEEBIRF - NE
R EENREEEARND RE
B2 R R ETIN R B A -
ERAKEH B EREEBNER
TR - REAREH - #Ea
(FERCHEREYR) RUARREIZ IO -

REREHR - NAEEREBHAE
ISR BRI ARG - HAETR
HimENEa TARBELE
7 o BRIRBMFHEE(WE)R
BRAER - < RERAXRREE
FIEET - HRERE R E AR

A% -

b

AR B HARN S SR8 2 BB AR HE T
S TR EERE A FEIER

=g

i}

o
il

RIBREEITER - BERERE
FERER < 2 BB R ERASAR
(8 - WBER RE B BRI
R T B R RTTEE - BE
REBREREBRRAZ CBESERS
REHER -

I EH 2 R 17 195 B 5%
HIFEE AL 2 AR EERG
AR ZILEERE M REZ AF
BFF & @ EERFHETEAEMET
ZBERT - AREBMEEmE
F I REIRTS 2 B HIIR P % AR
TARZRFEE - AERE MR
BZAFEERRFX - BRIFBE
ERIRBHEERERREE °

HRERERAT —T— \FER

79



80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

0)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

0)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
property that is measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such property is presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

()

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including bearer plant are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements ~ 10% to 25% or shorter of the

lease term
Furniture, fixtures and 5% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Bearer plant 20% to 33%

Bearer plant include are a living plant that is used in the
production or supply of agricultural produce and is expected
to bear produce for more than one period, and has a remote
likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for
incidental scrap sales.

Bearer plant is immature until the produce can be
commercially harvested.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHEE®BE)

()

(m)

(n)

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the remaining period of leases.

Investment property
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The cost of properties held for sale is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs which
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location attributable to unsold units.

Net realisable value is estimated by the management, based
on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in
selling the property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

()

(9)

Biological assets

Biological assets are the growing crops of the Group on
the cultivation bases. Biological assets are measured at
fair value less costs to sell on initial recognition and at the
end of each reporting period. The fair value of biological
assets is determined based on the current market price with
reference to the species, growing condition, cost incurred
and expected yield of the crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair value
less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The fair value of
agricultural produce is determined based on market prices in
the local market. The fair value less costs to sell at the time
of harvest is deemed as the cost of agricultural produce for
further processing.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological
assets at fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair
value less costs to sell of biological assets shall be included
in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHE®E)
(p) Financial instruments (continued) () MBIAGE)
Financial assets (continued) HHBEEE)
Effective interest method BRI E %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables (excluding
prepayments) and cash and bank deposits) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

ERMNFERFTERBAENEER
TEEDRENBWAZHEHRAZ
7% BN ERSAHERE KR
B TARMERPAREFH
(HE R ) Z At R RER S AMEY)
WRERBFEZNE(BEBK
ERERNE2FAEEN%KEKE
AR XHRAREMEESL
&) °

BT A ZF B TR B F =
ELAERER o

EREWHE

B K EYGRIRIE RN R BT I5 A
R 188 1M P 75 (B X 3 AT E 1 a2 3F
TTEMBEE - VITHREK - BEX
Ko & Wk 18 (/B 4 e W Bl ok e LA
FEN IR (T BTN FRIR) A KRIR
& RIRITER) ERERANREEZ
B ASRERDREDRR

AENTON Ty ik LU
5 ER B SRR 51+ ELF SRR
B -

HEEERIE
MBEERSRENHEERTE
EEEREDNSR - EEREEERR
THBEEZBAARRESRER
RUTHERLIBEEREELZ —
BHZEEMMZIZER - B
ZBEERS/LIVRIE

HRERERAT —T— \FER

85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE

B 5 R R MY AT

For the year ended 31 March 2018
=T/ \F=A=t—ALEE

£=—=

()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHEXR®E)
(p) Financial instruments (continued) () MBIAGE)
Financial assets (continued) HHBEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) B EERE(E)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial assets at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including (trade and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance), amounts due to directors,
amounts due to related companies, amounts due to non-
controlling interests, amount due to a shareholder and
convertible notes) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible notes

The component parts of the convertible notes are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A
conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition,
the conversion option classified as equity will remain in
convertible notes equity reserve until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in
convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
note, the balance recognised in convertible notes equity
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in the profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHEXR®E)
(p) Financial instruments (continued) () MBIAGE)
Derecognition AR TEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Financial instruments (continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised in the
respectively functional currency on the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Foreign currencies (continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustments to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of “translation
reserve”.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

(s)

Impairment of tangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHEE®BE)

(t)

(u)

Leasing
All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
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it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that BEARITZERM  WEHZEEZ
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the SRR EH A SE(h AT - Al iR
amount of the obligation. B o

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate ERABEN SR RS B
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation HEHARBETHEREEAEREZ

at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHEXR®E)
(v) Related parties (v) BAER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: RTAERT  —HAHERBEARE
B 5 R
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ fWEBIATAL  BlEZ /\ii%ﬁ
related to the Group if that person: AT Zin R B E B REE
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () IEHIKERIERIAER :
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HARBEERTE 3
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AEREEXAEEE QT
the Group or the Group’s parent. ZEEBEERERKE o 5
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) Th?”\T@Hﬂ—H\ﬂ# BRERZR
conditions applies: SEEHE
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBOAXEEBR-—
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary s A= WNCIIQRIESS:

IR PNV S
RARMEARE)

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —FHEEAS —EEEMH
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ERRHEBERE(HS
member of a group of which the other entity is a —EBRRKERFIZER
member); NP WNCI W LNl

HEEDE)

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBARR—F=7
party; ZEERE

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —FEBRE=7EEN
other entity is an associate of the third entity; EEPE ME—EE

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) EBRERSESEEEEE
the benefit of employees of either the group or an HE2 BB EENRHZL
entity related to the group; HIBEE R AIETE

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi)
person identified in (a);

Sl
Zdl\
’fq
a;Ht

(vi) a person identified in (a)() has significant influence (vii) @) PTRRIA B ERE
over the entity or is a member of the key BEAFENNBZER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent (HZEBZERE)EE
of the entity); or ERENE ;o
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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=T/ \F=A=t—ALEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

£=—=

(x)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset
is recognised.
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(E_ T \F=ZA=t—HILFE
4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

(@) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value based on the
market values, being the estimated amount for which
property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction or the valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer has based
on method of valuation which involves certain estimates
and assumptions. In relying on the valuation report, the
management has exercised their judgements and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Should there be any changes in assumptions
due to change of market conditions, the fair value of the
investment property will be adjusted accordingly.

4,

BERGHHE R AT AABERE
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SKHERT R E A MR AM - AEE
&1 HAREI A B R SR B I R,
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(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

(i)

Fair value of biological assets

The biological assets are valued at fair value less costs
to sell. The fair value is determined based on either the
market-determined prices at the end of the reporting
periods adjusted with reference to the species,
age, growing condition and costs incurred to reflect
differences in characteristic and/or stages of growth
of biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly. The
independent external valuer and management review
the assumptions and estimates periodically to identify
any significant change in the fair value of biological
assets.

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end of each
reporting period or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of the CGU is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. An estimation of the
value in use of the CGU involves estimating the future
cash flows expected to arise from its continuing use
and applying the appropriate discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the CGU.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Trade receivables

The aging debt profile of trade receivables is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the receivables are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried
out if the agreed credit periods have been exceeded or
the repayment date is due. However, from time to time,
the Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of receivables are called into doubts,
specific provisions of trade receivables are made based
on credit status of the customers, the aging analysis of
the trade receivables balances and written-off history,
and specific provisions of trade receivables are made
based on credit status of the debtor, its historical
record and its financial background. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
written-off of the related receivables to profit or loss.
Changes in the collectability of receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect our results of
operations.

Net realisable value for properties held for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market environment and the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of selling expenses) less estimated
costs to completion of the properties. An allowance
is made if the estimated market value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
properties under development is less than expected as
a result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, may result
in material provision for impairment loss.
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(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated or amortised over their
economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful lives is a matter of judgement based on the
experience of the Group, taking into account factors
such as technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical wear and tear.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets, changes
to the estimates used can result in variations in their
carrying amounts.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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HE-2—\F=A=t—ALEE
5. REVENUE

(@ Revenue

Gross rental income

Sale of forestry products

Services income from landscaping
and earth-rock engineering services

(b) Other revenue

Bank interest income
Other income

5. W=
(@) Wz
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
HE AL 529 362
THE BRME @ 52,676 42,941
RERBEERERTAT
TR 2 BRFEUA 13,687 11,819
66,892 55,122
(b) Hftlzs
2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —F—+4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
ERITH B UA 9 7
E A 98 74
107 81
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6.

(E_ T\ F=ZA=t—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geographical area. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior management for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented the following
three reportable segments.

The Group’s operations and reportable segments are as follows:

Property investment and
development, operating and
managing residential and
commercial properties

Property business

Forestry business Research and growing of forestry
products for clean energy

sector

Landscaping and earth-rock
engineering business

Constructing landscaping projects
and earth-rock engineering,
maintenance engineering
business and planting and
selling forest trees and flowers

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately, for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and assessment of the Group’s performance.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
results, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax. The
adjusted loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before tax except that gain on bargain purchase,
unallocated finance costs, selling and distribution costs and
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
goodwill and unallocated corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

income tax payable, convertible notes, deferred tax liabilities, and
unallocated corporate liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

6.

(E_ T \F=ZA=t—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

These segments are managed separately as they belong to
different industries and require different operating systems and
strategies. There were no sales or other transactions between
those reportable segments. Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments is presented below:

(@) Segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and
other selected financial information

2018

Revenue from external customers REINPE P 2 Wi

Bank interest income HRITFESWA

Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERERENE
equipment

Loss arising from changes in fair value ~ £MEEMNATFEEER
less costs to sell of biological assets HERAREERER

Amortisation of land use rights T PR S
Total loss of reportable segments B Vi) spckks

Total assets of reportable segments ERHBEELE
Additions to non-current assets (note) RBIERBEEWZL)
Total liabilities of reportable segments AE2HHHEERE

6. 7o

g

BER(E)

FNEMBITETR  FARKE

=

REGTFTR - MORERE - WFEAIZ2

N

SER 2RO MERZIAT

D EWEEITHEREMBR S ©

(a) 2Pz B% - EE - BERH
ftb 32 7 Bt 15
—B-N\F

Landscaping

and

earth-rock

Property Forestry  engineering
business business business Total

BREELR

TREIR
MEXY HEXS BEREHR @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE FET FET
529 52,676 13,687 66,892
- 3 - 3
(6) (64) (672) (742)
- (10,519 - (10,519
- (74) - (74)
(180) (10,525) (2,494) (13,199)
159,963 115,744 15,845 291,552
6 15,575 2,233 17,814
(84,606) (3,794) (16,650) (105,050)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 2HEHR(E)
(a) Segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and (@ DW= -8xE BE- BERH
other selected financial information (continued) fRE G EER(E)
2017 —E—+tF
Landscaping
and
earth-rock
Property Forestry  engineering
business business business Total
BEEK
ThRHTIRE
MEET MEXTH REREH @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers REINPEP 2 Wiz 362 42,941 11,819 55,122
Bank interest income FATHBHA - 4 = 4
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE

equipment @] (60) (262) (328)
Total loss of reportable segments AEFHHEBRE (323) (89) (1,033) (1,445)
Total assets of reportable segments EHNHEELE 144,243 68,455 6,068 218,766
Additions to non-current assets (note) REIERBEEMZ) 6 = = 6
Total liabilities of reportable segments DS GriclErets (76,101) (4,039) (4,487) (84,627)
Note: Additions of non-current assets consist of land use rights i ABEIIFRBEEBIE LHER

and property, plant and equipment. HELARNZE « B KRk o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEERE)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (b) AE2F|HBRE - B - EERE
loss, assets and liabilities &2 ¥R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —=—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue &
Total revenue for reportable segments A 2/ 5 EPAaUk S 66,892 55,122
Consolidated revenue fra W 66,892 55,122
Profit or loss B
Total loss for reportable segments A2/ H I EERE (13,199) (1,445)
Unallocated corporate income ROBLEZERA 466 77
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMBERT (22,698) (17,738)
Consolidated loss before tax tRERBIRIEE (35,431) (19,106)
Assets BE
Total assets for reportable segments AZ2WmoNHEELRE 291,552 218,766
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEEE 89,479 116,411
Consolidated total assets RAEEERE 381,031 335,177
Liabilities aE
Total liabilities for reportable segments AEmon I aERE (105,050) (84,627)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEAE (117,525) (108,837)
Consolidated total liabilities e AERE (222,575) (193,464)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 2EERE)
(c) Geographical Information (c) HEER
The following table sets out information about the TREHATERAMENE 2 &
geographical location of () the Group’s revenue from external B () REEREINEBE P 2 W
customers; and (i) the Group’s land use rights, property, RSB 1 E AR - W% - &K
plant and equipment and investment property (“specified B REERIEEME(IEEIERE
non-current assets”). The geographical location of customer BE]) - BRPEZFEM IR
is based on the location at which the services were provided MR K EMZT 2 FIEH T E °
or the goods were delivered. The geographical location of 15 TE FEM B & BE 2 PR L TY AR IR
the specified non-current assets is based on (i) the physical (VEE(IMIHERAE - W% - K
location of the assets, in the case of land use rights, BEREFERIRENE) BERRT
property, plant and equipment and investment property; and i R()RIBEEFTEDE 2 &&EH
(i) the location of the operation to which they are allocated. EhMIE ©
Revenue from external Specified non-current
customers assets
RENEEF 2 W EBERBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017

“E-NF —T—+tHF ZB-NF —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET

PRC A 53,205 43,303 79,104 57,641
Hong Kong BB - - 104 125
Republic of Angola BT h 2R F 13,687 11,819 3,770 1,851

66,892 55,122 82,978 59,617
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers in the current year
contributing 99% (2017: 95%) of the revenue of the Group
from forestry business and landscaping and earth-rock
engineering business are as follows:

Forestry business MREESETS
Customer A BEFEH
Customer B BEZ
Customer C =XFR

Landscaping and earth-rock engineering  IrEE{L R EH 7
business TR
Customer D =PT

L The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

No other customers contribute over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group.

7. FINANCE COSTS

Imputed interests on convertible notes AMREBREEFE
Interest on bank overdraft RITBEZFB

7 ERER ()

(d FEXEEFZEH
RAFREEAREWEI9%(=F
—tF 95%) CMEXRT - BE

ERETAFIRER  TERF
YssanT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

N/A' 38 A 40,613

43,046 N/AT R E A

9,630 =

13,687 11,819

! EEkETERASEERKEE
BR10% A F o

BMEEM TP RERA S E AU
10%A Lk ©

A& AR
2018 2017
—B_N\E Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,211 3,939
4 _
2,215 3,939
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(E_ T\ F=ZA=t—HILFE
8.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration:
— audit services
— non-audit services

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) (note 10)
— salaries and other benefits
— contributions to defined contribution
schemes

Amortisation of land use rights
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Exchange loss, net
Share-based payment expenses in
respect of consultancy services
Operating lease charges in respect of
land and building
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill
Gross rental income from investment
properties
Less: direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
generated rental income during
the year
Less: direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
did not generate rental income
during the year

R B2
— R BURT
— IR

BTHRA(BIEESHE)
(KizE10)

— & REAER

— TE R IRET S 5K

b fe P AR 5
PREFEKA
WE - BELREITE

P IR - FE

Sh A R ARTS 2 B A (S R X

THREFREHEES

FhE B R AR ERER

RENEELENES B AL

o FAEEHESBA
MR EYRESL
MERLERX

B FRELARELEES

WARBREYEESE

R B R LY
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B RIERE IR, (GFA)ATIEE ¢
2018 2017
o A =
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
560 440
- 128
560 568
5,123 6,060
72 53
5,195 6,113
74 =
50,321 =
790 374
224 =
7,121 812
1,171 1,241
5,278 5,202
(529) (362)
56 45
121 146
(352) (171)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_T—)\F=ZA=+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Current tax: ZREATHIA ¢

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEH

— Over-provision in prior years —BAFEBERE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A BT 2 TS A

— Over-provision in prior years — AT FE R
Deferred taxation RIEFIIE

Credited during the year (note 24) FNE L (Hit24)
Income tax credit for the year REEMBEHER

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise
Income Tax had been made as the Group had no assessable
profit.

P MBI MBI AR AR and FiEE A BEREMERRA
7] which principally engaged in forestry cultivation, research and
application of agricultural technologies are entitled to tax exemption.

9.

8Bl R
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
- 81
(72) =
(72) 81
- (110)
- (29)
(361) (598)
(433) (627)

B2 \FR-F—tH=H
=t—RLEFER - FBMNEHRGEE
FERRBUE LA 16.5% 1 H

RIBECR B ZEREFE) ([ EMEH
E D REEMSHEERAME - B EH
BRARZIHER25% °

AN B R BURE A) - BRI At
REABNEHMHBECEMESHESE -

HEH MBI AN AR AR L EER
RRELRMERRATIERERE
BiE  RERMARNER ZE2H

BE -

HRERERAT —T— \FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at domestic income tax rate
Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose
Tax effect of expense not deductible for
tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of tax concession
Tax effect of temporary difference
Over-provision of prior years

Income tax credit for the year

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Directors’ remuneration:
— fees
— salaries and other allowances
— retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Others employees (excluding directors):
— salaries and other benefits
— contributions to defined contribution
schemes

9. FIEHERE)

RERZFAEHAINERE BERARRK

AIEIBIES BRI T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Brii A E IR (35,431) (19,106)
ERE ARSI RGTE 28 (7,238) (3,286)
BEFRHRWA Z TS5 2
(91) (10)
A A S 2 Mg 2&
5,824 1,030
RERHIBEB 2 RS2 2,070 1,151
MR 2 HIGE (565) =
R R 2 RIS & (361) 598
BAFERBEREG (72) (110)
REFFMEHEL (433) (627)
10. EERARAX
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
BEHM
— e 1,560 1,511
— e R EAMMERL 70 116
—RIREFIF B
13 13
1,643 1,640
EMEE (TEREES)
—¥e kHEAMAEF] 3,493 4,433
— TR FRET BN
59 40
3,552 4,473
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e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 10. EERFAFAX(E)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEFM
The Company’s board of directors is currently composed ARAEFEREEMA(ZF
of two (2017: three) executive directors, one (2017: nil) non- —tF =F)RTEER - —F
executive director and four (2017: four) independent non- (ZZF—+F : ®)IFPTES RN
executive directors. H(ZE—+F - B BILIEAIT
EFBME -
2018 —E-N\E
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
HeRk EREF
e Hid2E, HE G st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITES -
Ms. Yang Wei? TSR 2 240 - - 240
Mr. Zhang Yangiang SR A 5R E AE 600 50 - 650
Non-executive director: HHITEE :
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky' REB L 240 20 13 273

Independent non-executive BN FEHITES -

directors:

Mr. Chan Ying Cheong BRIES 4 120 - - 120
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EERESLE 120 - - 120
Dr. Yang Fuyu 5 BN e T 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Yongmei HEKg 22+ 120 - - 120

1,560 70 13 1,643
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR ER R MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018
=T \FZA=t+—ALFE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

10. EEBAIFEX (&)

(@) E=FHM(E)

2017 —E—+F
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
ek ERET
e HhER B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET 8T
Executive directors: WITES -
Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky REBLL 240 20 13 273
Ms. Yang Wei? TR 12 191 - - 191
Mr. Zhang Yangjiang SRR BB 600 96 - 696
Independent non-executive BN IEHITES -
directors:
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BIEASLAE 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Ying Cheong PRIES 4 120 - - 120
Dr. Yang Fuyu® HE LS 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Yongmei K igZ T 120 - - 120
1,511 116 13 1,640
Notes: Hiat -

! Ms. Ng Mui King, Joky was resigned as an executive director
and appointed as a non-executive director on 22 December
2017.

2 Ms. Yang Wei was appointed as an executive director on 14
June 2016.

S Dr. Yang Fuyu was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 12 January 2016.

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE

By B R R MY AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
E-T—/\F=A=t—ALEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

£=—=

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, 3 (2017: 3) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining 2 (2017: 2) highest paid individuals who are non-
directors are as follows:

e R HAERE
BIAEFIFT ISR

Salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

The number of non-director highest paid individuals whose
remuneration within the following band is as follows:

Within HK$1,000,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2017: nil).

At the end of the reporting period, there was no forfeited
contribution, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits scheme and which are available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

1,000,000/ TLIA R

10. EERAFEX(E)

(b) EEZEFAL
AEERERSHFALEBE=A
—T—+F: ZR)ARRESE
HEMEN EX - R TRA(ZE
—tF MB)ERSHFAL(FE
B)ZFHMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,103 1,061

31 25

1,134 1,086

HHNF T BEZIFEERH

AT ZHBWT :
Number of individuals
N
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —F—+tF
2 2

FR - AREYRAETARESES
AL SATERFE - ERREIE
FnEs BB % 2 RE) A
REEREE(CT—EF  ®) -

() MBEHEAEER - WELDIRK
ZHF - AEHRDEERERHE
RABHFIET &l EL - A AR
BRERFRERMN MR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

11.

12,

DIVIDEND

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year, nor any
dividend has been proposed by the board of directors subsequent
to the end of the reporting period (2017: nil).

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

11. RE
RERN I EIR T RERZ IR REE
RS MARRES G ERZ KT
BE(ZF—tF: 8|)-

12. SREXREEFES
KAREE AERERERREEER
TIERATEIEE -

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss =]
Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ FLrtEEREAR N E#EE IS
of the Company for the purpose of mE @ AAREES AEMN
basic and diluted loss per share FAEE (38,756) (17,822)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
’000 ‘000
F Fhg
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary R EBREAREFEE
shares for the purpose of basic and MmE - SR8
diluted loss per share 2,368,936 2,326,196

The calculation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options and
conversion of convertible notes as they had an anti-dilutive effect
to the basic loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017. The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR R E
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE-2—\F=A=t—ALEE

13. LAND USE RIGHTS

Cost:

At 1 April

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31)

Exchange alignment

At 31 March

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 April

Amortisation charge during the year
Exchange alignment

At 31 March

Carrying amounts:
At 31 March

B

A —H

UTER BB A R A
(H1:£31)

[& 5

R=A—H
Rt
REA—H
FREHRE
3¢

R=A—H

BRMEIE :
R=HA=+—8

The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC which the
leasehold periods were a remaining period of 64 years.

13.

+ b fE A

2018
—g-N%
HK$’000
FHAT

5,650
603

2017
—T—+tF
HK$’000
FET

6,253

74

77

6,176

AEEW L EREURTE - N

EHAM B64F o
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B2F—

Cost:

At 1 April 2016
Additions
Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2017 and
at 1 April 2017
Additions
Acquired on acquisition
of subsidiaries (note 31)
Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2018

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss:

At 1 April 2016
Charged for the year
Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2017 and
at 1 April 2017

Charged for the year

Exchange alignment

At 31 March 2018
Carrying amounts:
At 31 March 2018

At 31 March 2017

A

W= FNA—H
RE
5 A

R-E—t£=f=+-H
kZE—tENA—H

AE

BB A A A
(#iz231)

& Ji R

W=F-\#=f=1-H
ZETERAERE
RZE—FNA—-H
REEMR
A
W-_E—+#=f=+-H
k=Z—tFNA—H
REENR
A
W=_F-\#=R=+-H
REE
R-E-NE¥=A=1+-H

RZE—tF=A=1-H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
NEFE=ZA=+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERXE

Furniture,

Bearer Leasehold fixtures and Motor

plant  improvements equipment vehicles Total
B #E

TEMEN  AENRKE e RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT AT TET TET
- 59 2,544 299 2,902
- - 6 = 6
- - (150) (18) (168)
- 59 2,400 281 2,740
- - 2,290 - 2,290
9,900 - - - 9,900
1,057 - 440 31 1,528
10,957 59 5,130 312 16,458
- 11 242 53 306
- 15 302 57 374
- - (19) @ (23
- 26 525 106 657
1,816 15 716 59 2,606
81 - 86 15 182
1,897 4 1,327 180 3,445
9,060 18 3,803 132 13,013
- 33 1,875 175 2,083

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_T—)\F=ZA=+—HILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15. BREWE

HK$’000

FAET

At 1 April 2016 R-ZF—RFEOA—H 61,383
Exchange adjustment PE 5 (3,849)

At 31 March 2017 and at 1 April 2018 R-EBE—+F=A=+—HBF=_Z—\EWA—H 57,534
Exchange adjustment b H % 6,255

At 31 March 2018 R-ZZE—N\E=F=+—H 63,789

The Group’s investment property’s interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment property. The Group’s investment
property is located in the PRC and held under medium-term
lease.

AEERBEEROFAENSRRES
HEATEBNHKEYEERERR
FERAFETSERARSIKED
X o AKENREVMEUNTEREER
HIHAOEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

16. GOODWILL

Cost:
At 1 April and at 31 March

Accumulated impairment:
At 1 April
Impairment loss recognised

At 31 March

Carrying amounts:
At 31 March

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment)
at the end of the reporting period are as follow:

Forestry business

Landscaping and earth-rock engineering

Goodwill acquired has been allocated for impairment testing

purposes to the following CGU:

—  Yenbo Gain (Forestry business segment) —
—  Best Sky (Landscaping and earth-rock engineering business —

segment)

16. &8
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
R
RIWA—BEk=R=+—H 49,996 49,996
ZEHRE :
RIMA—H 5,202 =
BHERRREERE 5,278 5,202
NR=A=+—8” 10,480 5,202
BRIEIE :
R=R=+—8H 39,516 44,794

RS HR A B B (kR RETRUE) RORR

EEMT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E 5
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
MEE TS 9,257 9,257
REXEMET AT IEER 30,259 35,537
39,516 44,794

A TREELEN

EBE0ER)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE
16. GOODWILL (continued)

16. & (&)

Yenbo Gain

The recoverable amount of Yenbo Gain CGU is determined based
on the value-in-use calculation under the income approach, which
includes the discounted cash flows sourced from the financial
budgets approved by the management covering a 5-year period,
and the post-tax discount rate of approximately 22.24% (2017:
26.38%) that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the Yenbo Gain CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on
the expected revenue from existing and potential customers
throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-
year period have been extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017:
3%) per annum growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the
long term average growth rate for the market.

The goodwill associated with the Yenbo Gain CGU has been
referenced to the valuation report prepared by an independent
qualified professional valuer, Graval Consulting Limited. Based
on the above assessment, the directors concluded that no
impairment loss should be recognised in respect of goodwill
associated to Yenbo Gain CGU.

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any
of these the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount
is based would not cause the carrying amount of the Yenbo Gain
CGU to exceed the its recoverable amount. Thus, no impairment
loss was recognised for the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017.

BEF
BEFRSEASBMZ ] RESETIZ
WAERZEREEFEFRNEE © A
BIEAR TR B IR [ P it W = A F BRI B
BEEZBHRBIRERE @ MEERIR
RU22.24% ( —F—+4F : 26.38%) %
BT H SR RREERERE
FIReEEEM AR 2T -

RIEHEERZIRERETER T EREME
JEE AR 2 TBERIR A RBER P RS M
et - BBRFHzREe RSB FEAE
FEFERERI%( T —+4F :3%)HH -
ZEEWABHTISZ REFHEER o

HBEMNRSELEUERNAEE 2
EHBEIAERBXGEMBELERE
RAERABRAENGERS - RIE L
AHh  EERABENRRENRSE
FEMARNBEERRERR

EERA - AETKRESEMKENE
MZERREMEEAEESH T 2E
HRENREELBN  RAERAE
ARESE - At BE-F—/\FR
—EtHF =A==t B LFERERE
RIBEEE ©
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Best Sky

As the landscaping project in Angola has been deferred and
so as the related income trends due to the uncertainties of (i)
political instability and; (i) fluctuation of the crude oil leading to
the economic instability and increasing pressure on foreign direct
investment. The directors are of the view that the development of
Best Sky CGU was adversely affected and its performance was
not up to the expected level. The directors have referenced to the
recoverable amount of Best Sky CGU based on a fair value less
cost of disposal calculation based on present value of estimated
realised cash flow for sale. Based on the above assessments,
the directors concluded that impairment loss of approximately
HK$5,278,000 in relation to goodwill associated with Best Sky
CGU were recognised for the year ended 31 March 2018.

At 31 March 2017, the recoverable amount of Best Sky CGU
is determined based on the value-in-use calculation under the
income approach, which includes the discounted cash flows
sourced from the financial budgets approved by the management
covering a 5-year period, and the post-tax discount rate of
approximately 26.63% that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to Best Sky CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on
the expected revenue from existing and potential customers
throughout the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-
year period have been extrapolated using a steady 3% per annum
growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long term
average growth rate for the market.

The recoverable amount of the Best Sky CGU has been
referenced to the valuation report prepared by an independent
qualified professional valuer, Graval Consulting Limited. Based on
the above assessments, the directors concluded that impairment
loss of approximately HK$5,202,000 in relation to goodwill
associated with Best Sky CGU were recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

As the CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount, any

adverse change in the assumptions used in the calculation of
recoverable amount would result in further impairment losses.
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ARE IR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE_E-N\F=ZA=T—HIEFE

16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BE(E)

BEX

ZENMIRERCTIREDEHE I
BO)BCAETEBE N8B 8 E B
BETEEREINEEERERINASE
RN EE S| BRI A BE - EER
B BEXRBECEABNNERIETH
HE . HRBVWEEBFEHKT - ES
ELERXXBEEABMZ ] REISHE
(BREBEAFERBEEXNNTE(ERNEE
REETRIRIRS R ZIRE)) o BIE Ll
TE o BEERE HE T N\F=
A=+ B FERREZRFCEL
B AR R R 2R (B B 18 495,278,000/%8
e

R-ZTE—+HE=A=+—H #XESL
EABMN 2 AT E £ 58 IR R A AT 2
FREBENEIANET  BEEREE
EERTHERE A F R BRIEE 2 A
MERSRE - MAEEIAEL26.63%
RIS S8 2 R REEE R
KIRGEE B AR R 2 5T -

BEEHMNR SR EEURREEEE
#ERS A REEE P RS - 8
DA F PR SR E LN T FIYHE
MR EE K  ZARETRAD
B RITIRERE -

HERRECEABMNAIRLEOCEELE
BUAEREEGHBEMBEEERME
RARREMNHERSE - BIFE LT
h EEEwmE HE-_T—LtF=A
=t B FERRERXRIECEES
L A B8 & 7 2 5 B B 18 #95,202,000 7%

JG ©

HRBESELEMDAREAE KOS
# o AT ERAIRE SRR RRVERT
ME G S EBE — PRERE -
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e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_T—)\F=ZA=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 17. HELHEWME
HK$000
FEIT
At 1 April 2016 RZZT—RFMNA—AH 92,014
Additions NE 35
Exchange alignment b 5, B (5,770)
At 31 March 2017 and at 1 April 2017 R_ZE—+F=A=1+—HK
RZZE—+FMA—H 86,279
Additions NE 297
Exchange alignment e H 9,395
At 31 March 2018 R-ZEBE-NF=B=+—H 95,971
The properties held for sale were expected to be recovered after FHED EYFTa RN —F AR E -
more than one year.
The properties held for sale at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are RZE-N\ERZFT—tF=HA=+—

located in the PRC and held under medium-term lease.

ST

B SELEWRLR B Rz
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e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_ZT—)\F=ZA=+—HLLFE

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Fair value

At 1 April

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31)

Increases due to plantation

Decrease due to harvest

Loss from changes in fair value less
costs to sell

Exchange alignment

At 31 March

Analysed into:

Non-current portion
Current portion

18. £YEE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
AVE
RMA—H - -
UK EE M B~ Bl BB A (AY2231)
53,131
R FEE 0 3,993 =
] i i ek > (8,666) =
N EE B R HERASEER
(10,519) =
PE H R 8,603 =
R=BA=+—H 46,542 —
2T
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
JEMENEE D 42,103 =
mEnEs D 4,439 _
46,542 =

The Group’s biological assets represent the growing populus alba
var. pyramidalis and chinese herbal as follows:

Populus alba var. pyramidalis
Chinese herbal

S
Fh BERf
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2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
38,158 -
8,384 -
46,542 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE IR RMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE_E-N\F=A=T—HLEFE

18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
The analysis is carrying amounts of biological assets is as follows:

At fair value less costs to sell

DNFERE R A

An analysis of the estimates of physical quantities of the Group’s
biological assets at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

S
Fh BERf

Populus alba var. pyramidalis
Chinese herbal

Principal assumption for valuation of biological assets
The followings principal assumption have been adopted in the
valuation of biological assets:

e  asrepresented and confirmed by the management, as of the
valuation date, other than the identified assets & liabilities,
there were no contingent asset and liabilities or any other off-
balance sheet items which should be recognised or valued
by the business enterprise;

e for a going concern, the business enterprise will successfully
carry out all necessary activities for the development of its
business;

e the contractual parties of the agreements will act in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreements
and understandings between the parties and will be
renewable upon expiry;

18.

EYEEE)
AV EEMNREBEI AT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
46,542 _

RBERRBAEB LY EEREMET

BTN -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
Number of Number of
plants plants
EYHE EmEE
’000 ‘000
F# Tk
220 -
1,746 -
1,966 =
EYPEERENETERR

AT REMEERETRANERMER

e TRHEXRPLEER HEMEAR
B BREHMINEERAEN B
ERAREERBEXRTMNEMBEE
BERINEEFEEBDERERK
(EYEW

o HFEKEME  FHEESKY
ReE—NFES - ABRER

o WEEMR] AT S ARIR 19 AR AV IR K
R IA R &7 B AGETTE B iR E8
REMEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
=T/ \F=A=t—ALEE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
Principal assumption for valuation of biological assets
(continued)

£=—=

18.

the availability of finance will not be a constraint on the
forecast growth of the business enterprise’s operations;

the unaudited financial statements of the business enterprise
as supplied to the independent qualified professional valuer
have been prepared in a manner which truly and accurately
reflect the financial position of the business enterprise as the
respective reporting period;

market trends and conditions where the business enterprise
operates will not deviate significantly from the economic
forecasts in general;

key management, competent personnel and technical staff
will all be retained to support ongoing operation of the
business enterprise;

there will be no material changes in the business strategy of
the business enterprise and its expected operating structure;

interest rates and exchange rates in the localities for the
operation of the business enterprise will not differ materially
from those presently prevailing;

all relevant approvals, business certificates, licenses or other
legislative or administrative authority from any local, provincial
or national government, or private entity or organisation
required to operate in the localities where the business
enterprise operates or intends to operate will be officially
obtained and renewable upon expiry unless otherwise
stated; and

there will be no major changes in the political, legal,
economic or financial conditions and taxation laws in the
localities in which the business enterprise operates or intends
to operate, which would adversely affect the revenues and
profits attributable to the business enterprise.
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18. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 18. EYEE(E)

Principal assumption for valuation of biological assets
(continued)

The qualification of valuer

The Group’s biological assets were valued by independent
professional valuer as at 31 March 2018 (the “Valuation
Date”). The professional valuers in charge of this valuation
have appropriate qualifications and relevant experience in
various appraisal assignments involving biological assets. The
independent professional valuers involved in this valuation include
a professional member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (“MRICS”) and have appraisal experience in a broad
range of assets such as property assets, biological assets, mining
rights and assets, technological assets and financial assets in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

Valuation methodology of biological assets

The valuation of the biological assets has been prepared in
accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards 2012 Edition
published by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, International
Valuation Standards published by International Valuation
Standards Council.

Referring to the HKIS Valuation Standards 2012 Edition, valuation
undertaken for inclusion in a financial statement shall observe and
refer to the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, including HKAS 41
Agriculture.

In the process of valuating the biological assets, the valuer has
adopted income approach and taken into consideration the
nature and specialty of the biological assets.

The discount rate applied in the valuation was 21.17%.

Work done on physical existence and quantity of biological
assets

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had performed
physical counts and verified the conditions of the biological assets.

In regarding to the biological assets, the Group had observed the
growing conditions and cross checked with the plantation plans.
To ensure the biological assets growing status are meet to the
target.

EMEEMENETERR(E)

1 EETE
AEENEMEERBYEXMAEMR
—F-N\F=ZA=1T—H((AEBH]
EITHE - AR WBAFENFEXMGEER
ESREMEENSRF G TIETHSE
REERNMAELR - 2HLREEZ
BYBXMHEMBRARZREAE
FEE (TMRICS ) MEXE 8 ANHE
REBYMREE  EWEE - FKEER
REE BRMBERMBEESZHE
ENEABFELR -

EYEE I ELM
EWEEZHEERREBAEMES
Bz BERNEMBEHEERN(ZF
— ZFhR) RBEIRFHEERR B RMHZ
BIFR AR R -

ZRMBESIEMBSHEEL(ZF
—ZFhR) - ARAPERERMETZE
BEEEBTRSERBSHMASHEMGZ
ARV HEHELEL(BIERBSTERSE
415 E%E) o

REHEEMEEZBIET - H{E E K
A R B BB E ZEE SRR

HEMERZITIRE/21.17% °

REWEBEZEYFEMRMBITET
ZIfE
BE_ZT-\F=RA=+—HILFE"
AEBUENEELTENRELZE
I

IAEMEEMS  AREEBERERMN

AREIREEA BB R - WEREDE
EZERBREDBR -
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EWERA R HfbE U FRIE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —TtF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaF FETT FEIT
Trade receivables JEM R K 56,018 1,516
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERBE - =
56,018 1,516
Other receivables H b pr Uz 18 (i 26 59,068
Prepayments TERIR 353 7,287
Deposits Be 511 13,885
56,908 81,756
Less: Prepayments classified as i D RIERBEE
non-current assets EFRfRRIA - (6,309)
Amounts classified as current assets DEAERYEEZ TR 56,908 75,447
Note: B
()  Other receivables mainly represent the amounts paid to different () HEEKFEBEBEEER-_ZT—N\FR=
suppliers for growing and supply of forestry products in 2018 and Tt FpiiEE Rt ERNE RN T
2017 and amounts paid for a tender for landscaping and earth-rock TREEEORBRIRER R LA
engineering business. 7 IRREREB AN TRIZARFRIE
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, presented AT ARWERR ZEREE AT » IRBE
based on the invoice date, which approximates the respective HA (R W0 25 RERR B BRART ) I 30 B RER
revenue recognition dates and net of allowance for doubtful BEZ5
debts:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 3 months =@ARA 47,950 =
3 months — 6 months =EA=EEA 4,289 26
Over 6 months @iy~ EA 3,779 1,490
56,018 1,616
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BUWERM R H b B RRIA (&)

The average credit period granted to customers is 6 months after
an invoice has been sent out.

At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of approximately
HK$43,295,000 (2017: HK$1,516,000) is due from the Group’s
largest customer.

In determining the recoverability of receivable, the directors
considers if there is any change in the credit quality of the
receivable from the date when credit was initially granted up
to the end of the reporting period. In the opinion of directors,
no impairment was recognised for both years as there was no
significant change on their credit quality.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable.

An aging of trade receivables which are neither past due nor
impaired and past due but not impaired:

MR B TR ARE

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than one month past due but not

impaired

One to three months past due but not B — = = @ B ERBE
impaired

More than three months past due but AR E =@ AERRE
not impaired

TR —EAERRE

BRYEPZTFHEEMABHBEREN
@A -

RZBE-N\E=A=+—0 K~&EEE
Wi K& F 2 I8 %) 543,295,000 7T
ZZE—+% : 1,516,000/ 7T) °

BT WD ERIR 2 AR - EFE
BEEERRKLUEAREREHHEES
BItEREFEZ EEERERAEMAE
B -EFZRN HREGEERYES
REH) R EHRZFFEERRE

B E 2 BRERARBIENHFEHRE
BEmMASERHAERIRERELS
B RANEEEZHEEAZEYRE
BN A T -

BEARBEITRARRE R B BHRERREZ
FEUGRIA BRI -

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
52,239 26

- 221

1,758 337
2,021 932
56,018 1,516
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20. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Cash at bank and cash on hand RT\ e RFHERE
HKD BT

United States Dollar (‘USD”) En([Ex])
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TARY])

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had cash and bank deposits
denominated in Renminbi of approximately HK$13,952,000 (2017:
HK$7,736,000). The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018

0. RERBRITEN

2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT
59,116 62,731
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
44112 54,995
1,052 -
13,952 7,736
59,116 62,731

ARBRKRYFFEBETIHEaREBRCE
% o AR LIMAINE o A REEEE H
B 78 52 P B R 2R A 2 S AR
FOERIRIR ©

R-B—-—NE=A=+—0 Kx&H
BEEUARBTENE S RRITHE
FK4113,952,0008 T (=T — £ F :
7,736,000/87C) - KA BEFZEES
EESTHBBAETRINEBEIER ]
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21. ENERFREMESTUE

Trade payables FETERFK

Other payables (Note) HAb RSB (A7)
Accruals FEETE R

Receipt in advance TEW R IE

Deposits received Biize

PRC income tax payable FERTHR BFRTSEL

An aging analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

Within 3 months =@®AA
Over 3 months but within 1 year Bm={EAHE—FA
Over 1 year B—F

The average credit period on purchase of goods and services is
365 days.

Note:

Other payables mainly include the amount due to ex-director of the
Company and a director of the Company’s subsidiaries of approximately
of HK$2,500,000 and HK$1,809,000 (2017: HK$2,500,000 and
HK$1,791,000) respectively which are repayable on demand, unsecured
and interest-free.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
21,668 6,624
11,662 10,329
962 980

107 -

602 43

- 6

35,001 17,982

FENARRZ FREC AATAA T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
9,969 1,692
11,350 4,002
349 930
21,668 6,624

BEEmLRENFHEEHRI658 -

Haz -

HtENREETEREENARRREES
KA RIPH B 2~ B E R FRIA S K141 2,500,000
7 JT }& 1,809,000 7 7T ( = & — £ F
2,500,000/ 7T % 1,791,000/ 7T) * Z KB R
RERER - BN RE -

HRERERAT —T— \FER



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS/RELATED
COMPANIES/NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS/
A SHAREHOLDER
The amounts due to directors/related companies/non-controlling
interests are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Included in amounts due to non-controlling
interests with the amounts of approximately HK$1,282,000
related to consideration payable for acquisition of Zhifeng
Holdings Limited (“Zhifeng”).

The amount due to a shareholder is non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed repayment terms. The amount
which the shareholder has no intention to demand for repayment
within 12 months after the reporting period and classified as non-
current liabilities.

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The movements in the liability component of the Group’s

convertible notes are set out below:

At 1 April R A—H
Conversion into ordinary shares IR 5 WAk (HYi£25)
(note 25)

JeE P B R B
BEEMNBRX (AZ7)

Released upon expiry
Effective interest expense (note 7)

At 31 March R=BA=+—H

The movements in the equity component of the Group’s
convertible notes are set out below:

At 1 April RIUA—A
Conversion into ordinary shares RS TR
Redeemed upon maturity date [E s R ]

At 31 March R=A=+—H
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22. BNES BELR,FER
R RERFE

FENES BERR, LR ER A
BIEESHHEE  EBER  REREKE
KIEE o SIAFERNIEIEREZRIBL
1,282,000/ JT 8 & 584 M UK e 2 8 2
BRAR(EEDEMNRE -

BNBERFARIFESEE - |IEM
RENEBETEERDY - KREBERR
HERER T _EARNEEZRIEDE
RIERBAE -

23. TTEREE
AEEABRERE 2 8EHLHEEH T

s

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
25,606 74,432

- (18,925)

- (33,840)

2,211 3,939
27,817 25,606

AEEBRERERER Y 2 2SI
(I

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
13,454 35,144

- (6,430)

- (15,260)

13,454 13,454
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

£=—=

(i)

Convertible Note issued on 15 August 2011

On 15 August 2011, the Company issued a zero coupon
convertible note with face value of HK$33,840,000 (the
“Convertible Note”) to Mr. Huang Shih Tsai as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of Linkful Wise Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. The Convertible Note
is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable upon
maturity which is the fifth anniversary of the date of issue.
The holder of the Convertible Note has the right at any time
during the conversion period to convert the whole or part
of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Note
into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.1227 per share (adjustment of conversion price as
detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 2 April 2015
and 15 October 2015).

The Convertible Note is a compound financial instrument
containing two components, liability and equity elements.
The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
the discounted cash flows method at a market interest
rate for the equivalent non-convertible note. The effective
interest rate of the liability component on initial recognition is
approximately 11%. The equity component was stated at its
fair value using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model and included
under the heading “convertible notes equity reserve”.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Convertible Note
was redeemed on maturity when the conversion period was
expired.

23. THRKREE(E)

V)

R-B——FENBT+HBHETZA
BREE

RZZE——F\A+HH AR
RAEttBEERTEREAAES
33,840,000 L2 T B AT AR
B ARERER]) - tEAKIEEE
DEERERARREMB AR
HORE - AIRREESEEF -
R B RBEAFHTABBHFEFRAF
[ERmEEN - IR EBRFEEAR
R EBEN - BERIZRRESR
01227 T (B EAE - FEH
RARBIBHAZZE—RAFMNAZ
Br-_ZTE—HAF+A+HEBZA
E)V B RBRERE RIS IO RE

BIARESRRHIBBARNR 2 LB

AMEEREABEEAERERMED
DREEMBIA - BEHDZL
FEDZASIFATREREZ TS
MELAFRBSFTEAE - BESD
PTRERERFEZERMNERO R
11% ° #z 70 A - B AR EE
BERIE R FEIRL AT AT
ES v

BE_Z—+F=A=1+—HIF
B - AR EE N SR E R R E
FEEERER -
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23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

£=—=

(ii)

Convertible Notes issued on 30 March 2015

On 30 March 2015, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes with an aggregate face value of
HK$110,000,000 (the “New Convertible Notes”) to not less
than six subscribers who are independent third parties. The
New Convertible Notes is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable upon maturity which is the fifth anniversary of
the date of issue. The holders of the New Convertible Notes
have the right at any time during the conversion period
to convert the whole or part of the outstanding principal
amount of the New Convertible Notes into ordinary shares
of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.08
per share (adjustment of conversion price as detailed in the
Company’s announcement dated 15 October 2015).

The New Convertible Notes are compound financial
instruments containing two components, liability and equity
elements. The fair value of the liability component was
calculated using the discounted cash flows method at a
market interest rate for the equivalent non-convertible note.
The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is approximately 14%. The equity component
was stated at its fair value using the Binomial Tree Pricing
Model and included under the heading “Convertible notes
equity reserve”.
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23. THRKREE(E)

(ii)
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24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred taxation recognised by the

24, EEHEERS
AEERRCETEZREERIBEURERF

Group and their movements during the year: N2 ZEmT
Fair value on
investment Convertible
property notes Total
RENEZ
AYE EREE FoE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8T T FET
At 1 April 2016 R-ZZE—RFMA—H (20,289) (4,787) (25,076)
Credited to the consolidated STAGRABaE(MH9)
statement of profit or loss (note 9) - 598 598
Conversion of convertible notes R EE - 3,015 3,015
Exchange alignment BEE 3, 828 1,273 - 1,273
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017  RZZE—tF=A=+—H
k=F—+FMA—H (19,016) (1,174) (20,190)
Credited to the consolidated ST A BRER (M)
statement of profit or loss (note 9) - 361 361
Exchange alignment BEE 5 SR (2,067) - (2,067)
At 31 March 2018 RZZB—N\E=A=+—H (21,083) (813) (21,896)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$19,900,000 (2017: HK$9,338,000) as it is not probable if
there will be future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised
tax losses could be carried forward indefinitely except for the
tax losses arising in the PRC will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits.

R-EBE—N\EFE=F=+—0H AR FTKX
A BE 75 AR SR FE SR T 1) DA 3K 8 7] 4 80 R
ZBIEEE - A EEWER RETBIIA
518 4919,900,000/8 T (=T — £ F
9,338,000/ 70 ) RIELEFIBEE © A
REAGFT AR ZET - BB EERE
IEFRITREE o AR E1E 1] ER H
4E8E - MERR A RO P B EE A R AR SR 2R
JERTLUR N < BHIBBEERN AR —Z2R
FREIE -
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25.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 April 2016, at 31 March 2017, at
1 April 2017 and at 31 March 2018
at HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:
At 1 April 2016
Conversion of convertible notes (note)

At 31 March 2017, at 1 April 2017
and at 31 March 2018

Note:

On 12 April 2016, 26 April 2016, 13 May 2016 and 25 May 2016,
95,000,000, 125,000,000, 150,000,000 and 95,000,000 conversion
shares were issued respectively at the conversion price of HK$0.08 per

ERE

R_ZE—X"FMA—H -
—E—+F=/F=+—8 "
“E—+FNA—HK
—E-N\F=A=1+—8

FIRE{EO.01B T

ERITRAE

R-ZF—A"FMA—H
BRI SRR (i)

R-ZE—+F=A=+—8 -
“FFMA-AR

- /\f=A=+—H

share to certain holders of the New Convertible Notes.
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25. B
Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ZER ZERZ
BREEE HE
000 HK$'000
i FET
30,000,000 300,000
1,903,936 19,039
465,000 4,650
2,368,936 23,689

wzt -

RZFE—R"FHA+=H T FNH

A=+7H

—_E-—-XHFRA=-1+HH

CCE-XERATZ=AR

Rl iR

EER0BABITAE THABRBRRERA
A E 17 95,000,000 f% + 125,000,000 f&
150,000,0000% 295,000,0008% #4275 ©
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26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26.

(@ The Group, as lessee, lease certain premises under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for premises are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 3 years for both years.

At the end reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

The Group as lessee AEBEEREBA

— Within one year ——FR

— In the second to fifth years inclusive —FFEFRF
(BIEEEME)

The Group does not have an option to purchase the leased
premises at the expiry of the lease period.

(b) At the reporting period, the Group had contracted with the
tenant for the following future minimum lease receivables:

The Group as lessor AEEERHAA

— Within one year ——%R

— In the second to fifth years inclusive —FEFEFRF
(BIEEEME)

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$529,000 (2017: HK$362,000). All of the Group’s
investment properties are held for rental purposes. At 31
March 2018, the property expected to generate rental yields
of 0.8% (2017: 0.6%) on an ongoing basis.

RER AR

(@ AEBE(EARMAA)RBLCERD
ZHHESETYE - REMEFE
MEZHEEREMAS—E2=F -

RIBEHREER - XEERET
AIRERERLMAR T IR
N2 RFBEERTIAT

2018 2017
—-N\F  —Etf
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FHT
1,239 1,187

129 126

1,368 1,313

AEEY EEFNEERE SR
BEHEYE -

b) MIBEHE - AEBEEBEPITOM
BT RRSIEEE UK -

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

342 192

45 -

387 192

FAHKDOMERS WA B
529,000 B jt ( = T — + &
362,000/ 70) - NEBMERE
MEDBERDESEN - R -F
—N\E=A=+—8 - E:thEs
BEIR08% (T — 1+ : 0.6%)H
W RELHS -
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27.

28.

29.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
reporting period:

27.

BAEE
NREEEER  AEBBEUTE
A

Capital expenditure authorised and ERERFTHERBLATEER
contracted for, but not provided for in REVBHRRBEZERAAY

the consolidated financial statements

in respect of
— Properties held for sale — B {ELEYE
— Acquisition of subsidiaries G =YNG

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities at the
end of reporting period (2017: nil).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2012 Share Option Scheme

In order to enable the continuity of share option available to
be granted by the Company, an ordinary resolution had been
proposed to and passed by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012 to adopt
a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”)
upon the termination of the share option scheme adopted at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 August 2002.
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

- 113

- 30,176

- 30,289

28. HAREE

29.

RFEHEEER AEBEYETME
ARFABB(CT—LF &) -

BREE

—ER-CHBEREE
RERRFNHEERLERE 21X
E-——F ) \AZRBTZARARRE
FRELARREESERRBBER
RBER - MARREARAE_ZTT_F
NAZBRTZERBFAS LEAZ
FERUERTBI1R - SRR EI([ =
T _FREREE]) -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. iERMESHEI(E)

2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The 2012 Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant options to selected persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company as incentives or rewards for their contributions
or potential contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, invite (i) any director or any employee of the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (ii) any holder of
legal or beneficial title of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any invested entity; (iii) any business or joint
venture partner, contractor, subcontractor, agent, sub-agent of
the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support
or any advisory, consultancy, professional services to any
member of the Group or any invested entity; and (v) any supplier
of goods or services, customer or distributor of the Group or any
invested entity, to take up options to subscribe for the shares in
the Company for a consideration of HK$10 per each lot of share
options granted.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012. The option period shall not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant of option. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. HK$10 is payable on acceptance of an option within
28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme or the date of
approval by the shareholders in general meeting where the limit
is refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
individual in any twelve month period up to and including the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the
date of grant unless approval from Company’s shareholders has
been obtained. Options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or any of
their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the total number
of shares in issue or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

—E-—FBERESEE)

R - FHEREAEIFE AN R 6
BREBRETFREEATREBEARR AR
m EAREHAEBEEHERMNEB
FEERNZ BRI RE - EF 2 A BIER
B AR~ EAEKE AR R sk ER
REBERBZEAMNESHEMNEES : (()F
EBERKE R B K EMIRE TR
TEMNERZETREFTAREZER
BAA (W NEENTAREERE 2T
RIEBKEEERERH ZE2H D6
o RIE - BRI (v)AAREBEMAK
B AR EMIEEEBIZMEME - FE%
S E MR TS R S ERERR - FAsE
ERB2EMALRERS  ROAEE
SRR E B 5E 2 A i dh sk AR 7S 2
FERE - B DHEE  WEFRHER
E10B T2 RE BRI REBARQRK
D BEIRHE -

e i LRt
N\A= B R - B
P o 55 11 O AR B8 2 3R AR ABIB T+
7 o TERRAAER L MBI
B o AR REE A= +/\B R
% 41078 TE LB — (D ARG -

BRE-ZE——FBERESRE 2B
RIS R 2 BHEE - AT T EBAC
T FIERRERT B B HAT AR R R
BREASHEEFH EREH 2B BITR
m10% ° BRIEEB AR B REIE - R
HERHBH(EEZA) EER+ =@
AHMARESZATEREREREZ
BRI TR I 2 39T G 81T 2 iR 1D
RE - TEBARETE BB BITR
B1% ° WP AR R E B kB FEH
TESHHEHZZBBEA T 2 BRER
FBE B TR (D 42 ER0.1%  S{EEHE 8
5,000,000/ 7T + A M4ZEE L EUS A A A
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. iERMESHEI(E)

2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified
option period. The exercise price shall be determined by the
directors, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

—E-—FERESEE)

BB % HE AT 50 45 E BB AR A HA R N BE RS 1T
fF - TEEERERET 22 A 5
—EPZERE  (NREBHZAAR]
BpUTE : ((2EREBHAEE
¥ B ZARNRIBRMDFHWTE K24
ARRMGEE - BE-T——FERE
s EIEA D BE A H A B AR R B AT IR
HmEFITHE 2T EBRE - RITER
AIREEIT 2 D EE EIR - TEHBAT
RFE 31T 2 N ARIIEH30% °

ARTTERB A 2 2 B 2 8 & HARRE AN
BEFITREENT

No. of underlying shares comprised in option

TARRE RERASE
Asat Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Quistanding
Exercise price 1 April during during during during as at 31 March
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2017 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZE-NE
Hg-tf =h=1-A
S8AL RiiA% s ShirkE MA-B  WEARE  RERTE  WEAKN  REREE  HAGR
Employess of the Group 4 February 2016 4 February 2016 to HKS0.264 33,600,000 - - - - 33,600,000
6 January 2026
TEEES “ENECRRR CERECABRE  0ER
EoNE-AiE
Consutants 4 February 2016 4 February 2016 o HK$0.264 78,400,000 = = = - 78400000
6 January 2026
B Z5-NEZARA Z3NECARRE 0BMET
ECNE-ARE
112,000,000 - - - - 112,000,000
Weighted average evercise pice. [TETS1(EE HKS0.264% T - - - - HKSD26437
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) . BRESTEI(E)
2012 Share Option Scheme (continued) —E-—FBERESEE)
No. of underlying shares comprised in option
iTABREZRBRAHA
Asat Granted ~ Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled  Outstanding
Exercise price 1 April during during during during  as at 31 March
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2016 the year the year the year the year 017
Hg-tf
R-F-5F ZRzt-H
S8AL R fikH ShiTRR MA-A  WEARE  WERGR  RERRR  REREE  HAAR
Employees of the Group 4 February 2016 4 Febrary 2016 1o HK$0.264 33,600,000 - - - - 33600000
6 January 2026
T5ERS “EAECRRR CERECABRE 0ER
ZRE-ARA
Consultants 4 February 2016 4 February 2016 to HK$0.264 78400,000 - - - - 78400000
6 January 2026
i SAFIARE CEAECANAE  OMER
ENE-ARE
112,000,000 - - - - 112,000,000
Weighted average evercise pice. ITETSI(EE HKS0264% T - - - HKSD2BAET  HKS0.264ET

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, no
share options were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled.

At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares in
respect of which may be issued upon exercise of share options
granted and remain outstanding under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme was 112,000,000 (2017: 112,000,000), representing
4.73% (2017: 4.73%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date.

RBE_Z-\F=A=+—HBK=-%E
—tFZA=THLEE  TEBK
e - 17 RUEHEH -

RFEHEAEER  BITERE=
T _FHEREFEERL RHEK
TEZEREMYT TETHRMNHK
B A 112,000,000 i (=T — £ F :
112,000,0000%) * {EARRA G RZ A E %
1T H94.73% (= F—+HF : 4.73%) °
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

31.

The Group operates retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in fund under the control of trustees. The
Group and its employees are each required to contribute 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the retirement benefits schemes based on a certain
percentage of their payroll to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to these retirement benefits schemes is
to make the required contributions under the schemes.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisition of Zhifeng

On 25 November 2016, Yenbo Gain Limited, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary, as purchaser and Mr. Tam Hau
Kin as vendor, entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement in relating to acquire 60% of the issued share capital
in Zhifeng at total consideration of RMB36,000,000 (equivalents
to HK$40,681,000). Zhifeng is an investment holding company
and the principal activities of Zhifeng and its subsidiaries (“Zhifeng
Group”) are (i) forestry cultivation and application of agricultural
technologies and (i) information consultation. The acquisition
was completed on 19 May 2017. The acquisition, being not
constituted as business combination, has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. As such, Zhifeng become a
subsidiary of the Company and the results of Zhifeng Group are
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018

30. BRIRERIFHE

31.

AEERBERFIERTES TSRO R
AIRRPIRMETESERER2ER
REME S ([REEEE]) - RIESF
BrEERAKE EENHRTA &
THEFRAZES - AEBREEEGA
BEBHERAZ5%MBTED 8/
S

XERTEHE QR ZEE T BEBA
LEBRERRAEMNTEIXE - P

BB R AR ETADLRAR
RENE B HFIAB R TR/ - NE
B FRKENET & 2 E—BETIR

IRt BV PR -

E 3 N
WEEEe
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31. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31.

Acquisition of Zhifeng (continued)
Consideration

Cash consideration HERE

Acquisition-related costs have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised as expense
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

ES G
S ()
RE
HK$°000
TET
40,681

Hﬁzﬁﬁﬁ FARAD B TEERAERHR
WRkREBERANERARFAX

RKBARHEKBEER EEZERE
wF

HK$°000
FET
Land use rights (note 13) T R (HaE13) 5,650
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) Y% -~ RE NS (Kt 14) 9,900
Biological assets (note 18) EEE(H118) 53,131
Cash and bank deposits W& RIRTTHFER 854
Other payables AN (1,129)
Total identifiable net assets AR EERFE 68,406
Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition: W EE R ZEWE N
HK$’000
FET
Consideration paid and payables B REMARE 40,681
Add: non-controlling interests o0 IERERR R 27,363
Less: net assets acquired A BB EEFE (68,406)
Gain on bargain purchase REWE KR (362)

HRERERAT —T— \FER 141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

31.

32.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
Acquisition of Zhifeng (continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Zhifeng

Cash consideration paid BEfRERE
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances
acquired

RERHFE

Net cash outflow

Included in the loss for the year approximately HK$10,051,000
is attributable to the additional business generated by Zhifeng.
Revenue for the year includes approximately HK$9,630,000
generated from Zhifeng.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2017, total
Group’s revenue for the year would have been HK$66,892,000,
and loss for the year would have been HK$35,022,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2017, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 29 March 2018, Grant Shine Limited (“Grant Shine”), a then
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, allotted and issued
509,999 and 490,000 new shares at HK$1 each to, Best Plus
Global Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
an independent third party respectively. Upon the allotment and
issue of the new shares, the Group’s shareholding interest in
Grant Shine was diluted from 100% to 51% and was deemed to
dispose of a 49% shareholding interest in Grant Shine. The Group
recognised an increase in non-controlling interest of approximately
HK$463,000 in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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o BWIER S LRSS EMER

ESE G
WS E (%)
WhE B RF B 2 AR
HK$°000
TET
39,399
(854)
38,545

FEEEA10,051,0008 T EIERBER
HEMBREINEBNIEE - FEREE
FE2R B 2 /9#99,630,00078 T °

WEBEEEERN T —tFMNA—HRE
X - AN B E U 1 466,892,000
BT - FEEE R 435,022,000/ 7T °
HEERHERTA I —EXRTUE
EHEMER =T —EFMA—HEKT
REBBEZEKHERRE RLES

& IMEEIERARRFEETEA -

RIFZERERNR S

RZZE—NE=A=-+hB A27AE
B2 EMBRARERHEERAR ([
BHDNESRIEBTSMARRIZEE
Mt B A 7] Best Plus Global Limited % —
H L = T R 3 K 3 17509,999 A% K
490,000/ i% 5  PRACEE R E1THAR D
& REEREH AR R 100%E5%
£51% @ 18 A HE R R R49% 1 K%
1 o NEBNERE AR R MR IEIE
AEHE 2R 3 hN4)463,00078 7T ©
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions during the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2017:

(@

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel during the year was as follows:

B K Eo At A

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The remuneration of directors and key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals.

Loan from related parties

Included in amounts due to related companies of
approximately HK$59,543,000 (2017: HK$53,615,000)
represents the balances with the companies in which Mr.
Huang Shih Tsai, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
has equity interests and/or directorships. Other than the
aforesaid, details of the balances with related parties at the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RIEMET B

33. EXBELRS
%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’

REBEE-_Z-N\FER-_T—t5=A
=t HLEFE  AEECETUTE

RNEEFRS

(a)

(b)

TEEEBEAEZHE
RERNEENTEETEEBAS 25
BT :

2018 2017

—2-N\F —t4
HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

2,253 2,467

31 31

2,284 2,498
EERTEEREAR ZHMaH

MEZESRENALZRRETE -

REBESNER

FATENREERQRARKEY
59,543,000 L (= T — £ &F
53,615,000/ 70 ) JhfE B AR R 7] &
ERFEEHHEERBRO ER

R/ SEEERZ RAINER o B
EitESN - RS IR AAE A HEE

B 2 B RENGA ISR
f5E22 ©

%
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 34. EXEHE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the cash and
cash equivalents and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The capital structure of the Group consists of long-term
borrowings (comprising amount due to a shareholder and
convertible notes) and equity attributable to owners of the
Company (comprising share capital and reserves).

The directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As

AEEEEEER - ABEANSEET
ERSEABBICRESRASSZIEYN
REE T IARE - R BRBIRT K
RALH - REEBERIEEFIER -

AEERERNABLREREERSE
18 o SREL R TIUARR B B IN R BTN F
BEMREDTE -

AEBZEAGERBERRREE(EPE
RN — R BRA R AT RE) kA
NREE AR (B B R
) °

EETHEHNEAERE - EREHZE

D BEEREAKAREEEE RN
MRk ReSHREERZELRR

part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio

at the end of the reporting period was as follows: (E RSN
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Long-term borrowings REEE
Amount due to a shareholder FEN—R IR B (H722)
(note 22) 69,414 69,414
Liability component of convertible AR EREES S (Hi223)
notes (note 23) 27,817 25,606
Less: Cash and bank deposits W e RIBITIFR (59,116) (62,731)
Net debt FRE 38,115 32,289
Equity attributable to owners of the NATHER ANEEES
Company 110,706 130,799
Gearing ratio ERGELEE 34% 25%

144 GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R AR Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. TR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) MEITAEER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Loans and receivables at amortised cost  IRESER AT E 2 BN
JEWRRIE
Trade and other receivables P ST AR 3 % A U SR IR 56,555 74,469
Cash and bank deposits Be MRTTER 59,116 62,731
115,671 137,200
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R EZ MR E
Trade and other payables FEF AR Bt B S 3R IE (34,894) (17,982
Amounts due to directors e EEFIE (6,576) (6,576)
Amounts due to related companies [N REEE R R FRIE (59,543) (53,615)
Amounts due to non-controlling FE FEIE AR i 2 BUIR
interests (2,319) -
Amount due to a shareholder JES — 2R FIA (69,414) (69,414)
Convertible notes Qe (27,817) (25,606)
(200,563) (173,193)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BHEREEEERBER
The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in AEBZFTEFHEIER EXH
above. The risks associated with these financial instruments %o %SV ITEMEEZEREE
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and MEER(EERE - XK@ X
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk; the policies BRAERER)  FERBRERH
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The BB RIEZERRZBERS
management manages and monitors these exposures to T - BEEEEENREERRE
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely & AR LB S A MU B EE S
and effective manner. H I ©
There has been no change to the types of the Group’s NEBE AR 7 B 7% T AR RIER 5k
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in HERKESRR 27 EEM
which it manages and measures the risk. BEp o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
(i) Market risk management
Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk which gives
rise to cash and bank deposits that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transaction relates.

Certain cash and bank deposits are denominated in
USD and RMB. The conversion of RMB into other
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
government of the PRC. The Group is not exposed to
foreign exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuation
of HKD against RMB as the Group does not have
material balance in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange
risk exposure in respect of HK$ against USD as long as
this currency is pegged. Therefore, USD are excluded
from the analysis below.

No sensitivity analysis is provided in respect of
exchange fluctuation of HK$ against RMB as the Group
does not have material balance in RMB.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates arises primarily from bank deposits with a
floating interest rate. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not
have variable rate interest bearing liabilities. The Group
has no exposure to interest rate risk.

Equity price risk

The Group does not have investments in equity
securities for trading purpose and therefore is not
exposed to equity price risk.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. BT R(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERBREEEERBR(E)

(continued)

(i) Credit risk management (i) EERREEE
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which AEEERSFHREBITEE
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to BAEE R BEE &
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising SiEERR TR B ERE TSk
from the carrying amounts of the respective recognised REMREAEERMBERE
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement EEZREE -

of financial position.

At 31 March 2018, the Group has certain concentration RZE—N\F=A=+—8 -
of credit risk as 76% (2016: 100%) of the trade K’Elﬁ%FEE%qﬂﬂﬁﬁ
receivables of the Group were due from single customer RARAEET76%(ZZ—X
(2016: single customer). The directors considered F - 100% ) FEW AR TR/ FE Y B8
the credit risk is limited since the Group only trade —RBPRIBE(ZE—RF: 8
with customer with an appropriate credit history and —BP) EERBEERAR
good reputation. The directors monitored the financial BR - DEREEERESHE
background and creditability of those debtors on an EEEHEARIEBEENEFE
ongoing basis. 5 EEREBEIEZFEBHBA
HIEE R RER -
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management ==EREEERR EEE
has credit approvals and other monitoring procedures *ﬁ{* Bt V&E@%%’% 2
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover F? » DARER G ERERER 7T A
overdue debts. In this regard, the directors consider W EAHAGETR - stk - EFR
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. R AEEEERRE AR
PRI, o
Other receivables consist of a number of counterparties H U sRIES R RKREHF
which do not give rise to significant concentration risk. 7 AR EARE R R
B o
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly AEBZEERBREERER
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather PR E R B M IE % P I FT
than the industry and country in which customers @HT%&FF{EI*E/ 2.
operate and therefore significant concentrations of EERREESETZER
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant Ex%iﬁ/\zﬁi E¥ER%E P
exposure to individual customers. BEERERAEREL -
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented A EERBBAENSHBE
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the ERiE M HRARMNREE
consolidated statement of financial position after (BREREREER) - A&
deducting any impairment losses. The Group does not I E R MR B E RS
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group HEREERRE

to credit risk.

The Group deposited its cash and bank deposits AEBKHIR S RIRITFHT
with approved and reputable banks. Bankruptcy or BMRERATREEEZEMIR
insolvency of the banks may cause the Group’s right 17 o SRITHEE SR NEERT A
with respect to cash and bank deposits held to be B AL B TR fﬁi&ﬁifﬂ?
delayed or limited. The management monitors the XA TR - BIRER
credit rating of these banks on an ongoing basis, and BEBRIRIT 2 ERTR
considers that the Group’s exposure to credit risk were TREAEEZEERRBE
minimal. i o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk management

In management of the liquidity risk, the management
manages the Group’s funds conservatively by
maintaining a comfortable level of cash and cash
equivalents in order to meet continuous operation
needs. Various banking facilities and credit lines
will be considered to fund any emergency liquidity
requirements. The Group currently relies on funds
generated from business operations, issue of new
shares and convertible notes as well as advances from
directors/related companies/non-controlling interests/a
director as principal source to maintain its liquidity.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents considered adequate by the directors
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the

effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. Undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities are based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for both 2018

and 2017.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (continued)

Weighted
average effective
interest rate
4
THERRIZ
218 “E-)\F
Non-derivative financial liabilites 3474 B%E%E
Trade and other payables R R A ENTE -
Amounts due to directors EEES -
Amounts due to related companies  EREEEA AR -
Amounts due tonon-controling  FERTSEERIER SR
interests -
Amounts due to a shareholder R — 2R RHE -
Convertible notes RS 14%
Total @it
2017 “EtE
Non-derivative financial labilties  3EAT BTG E
Trade and other payables ERERREMEMNE -
Amounts due to directors ERESTR =
Amounts due to a shareolder EA—2RETE -
Amounts due to related companies  JEREEAAZE -
Convertible notes EREE 14%

Total )

35. BT R(E)
(b) FHEEREEEERBERE)

(i) FEBELEEEE(E)

On demand Total Total

o less than Oneto undiscounted carrying

one year five years cash flows amount
RER RifTH

g-FR -E1F  RENBER ABEE

HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

FEr AT A AT

34,894 - 34,894 34,894

6,576 - 6,576 6,576

5,543 - 59,543 59,543

2,319 - 2,319 2,319

69,414 69,414 69,414

32,800 32,800 2817

103,332 102,214 205,546 200,563

17,982 = 17,982 17,982

6,576 - 6,576 6,576

= 69,414 69,414 69,414

53,615 - 53,615 53,615

- 32,800 32,800 25,606

78,178 102,214 180,387 173,193
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The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors consider
that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR ER R MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018
=T \FZA=t+—ALFE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 6. AFEFE

MBEERMBABZAFEEREE
REBRBESREN TN AR EERAE
= o

BRINRALEI  EFRR - NEEAH
BHRRTERZH B EERMBAEZ
FREEEENFERS

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —FT—+tF

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IREE ATE BREE NS
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FEIT FEIT
Convertible notes AR & 27,817 26,178 25,606 23,414

The fair values of convertible notes is classified as Level 3
category in fair value hierarchy which have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs
being the discount rate that reflects the return required by the
holder for investing in similar financial instrument.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment property and biological assets measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified as determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

e level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available; and

e |evel 3 valuations: fair value measured using significant

36.

NP EFEGE)

DFEER

TR R REHEEEAIZEE R
BABY D BABEMBHRELAES

WA FEFEMAEZ=ZBATFESFR
BB AEBERENEREYEENR
FE - RFEAEZERDBTIZEN
THEEMERBABEZ ABRER
ZHBEWT

o FRMEE: BRAE—RBAR
BB ATE  MRHEAN
EREERE BT RTS 2 R E
BRI

s FAMGE: KAE_LBARE
HEZATE BREFEE—R
ZABEREANE  BYERAE
ATHBRBARE - THERH
ABBTELZMEMIZRIEZ8A
LS

o F=RMHE: KREXRTITESREH

unobservable inputs. ABBAEZ AFE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—-& -~Jmt 11} F=HK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 31 March 2018 R=Z—N\F
=A=+-F
Investment property: REYZE
— Located in the PRC — (IR - 63,789 - 63,789
Biological assets EWEE - - 46,542 46,542
- 63,789 46,542 110,331
At 31 March 2017 R=T—tF
=A=+—H
Investment property: "EME :
— Located in the PRC — (A - 57,534 - 57,534

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the date of the events or change
in circumstance that caused the transfer.

HE_ZT—N\FE_ZF—tF=H
=+ —HLEFE  F—REF L 2HE
W s = R EE A EE o
AEEZBEKE NS BEEN S
BREEE ARRATFESR 2 HAE

23
AR ©
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Fair value measurement of investment property

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at the end of the
reporting period have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer who are not connected with the Group and
have among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the valuation of property in
the relevant locations.

At the end of each reporting period, the management will () verify
all major inputs to the independent valuation report; (ii) assess
property valuations movements when compared to the prior year
valuation report; and (i) holds discussion with the independent
valuer.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurement

The fair value of investment property located in the PRC is
determined using market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price per square
metre basis to the quality of the Group’s buildings compared to
the recent sales which is publicly available.

Fair value measurement of biological assets

Biological assets were stated at fair value less costs to sell at the
end of the reporting period. The fair value was determined by
the independent qualified professional valuer, Graval Consulting
Limited by using income approach with reference to market-
determined prices, cultivation areas, species, growing conditions,
cost incurred and to be incurred and expected yield of crops.

In estimating the fair value of the biological assets, the highest and
best use of the biological assets is their current use.

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

NP EFEGE)
REMENDFETE
AEEREMERN REPROQFET
BREBYSERBXGEMPRERE
AEERARABDETHEEMSSE -
RARMEAEEYEEE  HAKEE
BRABMPBENET - BIHEHEHEH
M ERMMRAELR -

REHREMEGEER - EEERO)ZE
BIYGHERS BT ZHABR : (i)
HAFZ AERSLBREFEYEGE
HE) ¢ (i) BB A ER R o

EFERZEERMBEZS - RAEE
MERZAFER - MERERMERZTS

Rim REREMR °

FBZRAFEEBAREBREERMRE
BABE

NRPBEZREMEZ X HETIZER
BHBYME IMEBRE T I KER
1) RAREERFREN AR A SR
EZMEZEEZRABTIZLEOLERE -

EYMEENAFEFTE
EMEBEERNREHREE BRQTER
HEKRAIER - AFETIHBILSER
EXHEMEEEEXBERARAAZE
mEEE  BEERE @mE £ERE
N BEERSELZKRANARTAR 2
RIEMEEFERKRAEMETE °

WEFHEMEEZ A TER - £EYMEE
ERIFMERERE R&ERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

HE-Z - \F=A=1+—HLFE
36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 36.

Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The following significant unobservable inputs were used to
measure the Group’s biological assets plantation:

Description

it

Populus alba var.
pyramidalis Bunge
B

Cistanche deserticola
ARE

Glycyrrhiza uralensis
Fisch
HE

Lycium barbarum
AL

Valuation technique

B R

Income approach

WAE

Income approach

WK

Income approach

WAE

Income approach

WK

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTTEERARE

Estimated selling price (per cubic metre)

st EB(BILAK)

Required rate of retun

A DERE

Estimated selling price (per catty)
et EB (=)

Required rate of return
Mm%

Estimated selling price (per catty)
hEtEE(ET)

Required rate of retun

P iR

Estimated selling price (per catty)

fhstEE(BT)

NP EFEGE)
ENEENDFESEE)
BHFE=R L FlETBHEH

A TEATABRGABBRNGER
SENEMEERER :

Key unobservable inputs
as at 31 March

BEARAHEGAHE
R=BA=+—-H

2018 2017
—E-N\EF T+
RMB700 N/A
AR¥T00T TiEH
21.17% N/A
TEH
RMB13 N/A
AR¥13T TEH
21.17% N/A
NEF
RMB2 N/A
AR¥2T TNiE
21.17% N/A
TEH
RMB15 N/A
AR®A5T TNEF
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B2F—

Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

Description

i

Lycium ruthenicum

S

Hippophae
rhamnoides

DR

Ziziphus jujuba
AR

Valuation technique

fh{E R

Income approach

WK

Income approach

WA

Income approach

WK

Significant unobservable inputs

EXATABRGARE

Estimated selling price (per catty)
et EB(ET)

Required rate of return

P ERE

Estimated selling price( per catty)
et EE (')

Required rate of retun
FBERE

Estimated selling price (per catty)

At EE(8T)
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NEFE=ZA=+—HLFE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 36. AF{ETTE(E)
EMEENDPEFEGE)

BHE=R R FEBHEH(E)

Key unobservable inputs
as at 31 March

EARUBRGABE
R=R=+-A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB12 N/A
AR¥12%T A
21.17% N/A
TNiEH
RMB8 N/A
AR¥ST TiEM
21.17% N/A
TiEH
RMB5 N/A
AR¥5T TiEH
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 36.
Fair value measurement of biological assets (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the price
and required rate of return of each group of biological assets.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of biological assets
categorised valuations under fair value hierarchy of Level 3,
measured at fair value using a valuation technique with significant

unobservable inputs:

At 1 April

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31)

Increases due to plantation

Decrease due to harvest

Loss from changes in fair value less
costs to sell

Exchange alignment

At 31 March

REMA—H
WiE M B A B BB A (7231)

PRI HE 7 42 0
PRI TR
DT EL B SR

NP EFEGE)
ENEENDFESEE)
BHE=R R FEBHER(E)
NHEFEESEEYEENER LA
FEHRE 25 ER -

TREHBEE=Q/LTESRENE
EnBAENBHIERERE SN Y
B - AERBERMEAFEFELES

AERTATEREUE
2018 2017
—E-NEF —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

53,131 -
3,993 -
(8,666) -

(10,519) =
8,603 =

46,542 =
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™ AL X |
e BHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2018

(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE
37. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 were as follows,
the class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:

37. B ABFAER
RZE—N\E=A=1+—8 ' "RFIZ
MEBATT - BRBITHBEEI - P
BB RIS A @Ak

156

Proportion of nominal

Place/country of Issued and fully value of issued capital/

incorporation/ paid/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held by the Company Principal activities

AL/ BETRHR AATAREZERITRE/
WEARER Tes /AR R /EREs &R EEL) TEEH

Directly Indirectly
B 3
China Score International Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding and
Limited processing of iron ores
hEEREEARAT &R 18T RERRRERNT
Hi-Smart Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
BRMRBRAR BE 187 RERR
Yenbo Gain Limited British Virgin Islands US$22 - 81.82%  Investment holding
BENBARRA RERRES QET RERR
Hong Kong Silversage Holdings Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 81.82%  Investment holding
Limited

ERRIERARAR &R 10,0007 RARK
BREMRI (R ER AR The PRC RMB5,535,590 - 81.82%  Investment holding

i NE#5,535,5007 RAER
MEPARENRIERARA The PRC RMB1,838,500 = 81.82%  Research and growing of

forestry products for cleaning
energy sector

METHREENRATERA T i ARH1,838,5007 HE A RN ERBR TR M

REm

Zhifeng Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 49%  Investment holding
TEERBRAT RERARS 1007 RESR
Thousand Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 49%  Investment holding
FBERERRAR &b AT REHR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

37. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. MEARFAER(E)
Proportion of nominal
Place/country of Issued and fully value of issued capital/
incorporation/ paid/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BETRHE KAABEZERTRE/
WEARER fens /AR R /iEREs EMEAFEEEL AT TEXH
Directly Indirectly
Ei ik
REDKEERERAR The PRC HK$1,000,000 - 49%  Investment holding
i 1,000,007 RERR
MEENTELRERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 49%  Research and develop on
forestry products
i AKE10,000,0007C HEREEMD
TEBRGBERERR AR The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 49%  Forestry cultivation, promotion

and application of agricultural
technologies, and information

consultation
T AR #10,000,0007 MERS - BRRMERER
RRIE RS
Kingdom Win Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - Inactive
FIARADA &E 10,0007 VELE
Golden Strategy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
ERBRAT &b 10,0007 REAR
Linkful Wise Group Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands US$50,000 = 100%  Investment holding
BBRERRERAH REBRNES 50,0007 RERK
Great China International Enterprises ~ Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited
AP EEREXEEERAR B 30,000,000/ 7 REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR ER R MR
For the year ended 31 March 2018
=T \FZA=t+—ALFE

37. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. B ATFMAER (&)

Proportion of nominal
Place/country of Issued and fully value of issued capital/
incorporation/ paid/registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital held by the Company Principal activities
A/ BRIRAR RATREZERITRE/
WELATEH fens/Bx B%/aEx EMERAEEELSE IRXH
Directly Indirectly
Ei 554
LM EERERERAR The PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100%  Property investment and
development, operating and
managing residential and
commercial properties
i AR 25,000,007 NERRERER FERER
FEREENE
Field Source Capital Resources Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive
Limited
RYERBRAA BB 12T TESE
Great World Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
£ AT RERR
Best Sky Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 51%  Investment holding
ERERBRAA RERARS 1007 RERR
Asset Express Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 51%  Investment holding
BERRAR A 17T REER
IEEAEEZEERAT The PRC RMB2,000,000 = 51%  Constructing landscape projects
and earth-rock engineering,
maintenance engineering
business and planting and
selling forest trees and flowers
i AR %2,000,0007T BERIRRLASIRE
# - BEUARBERHEERN
BIAAER
Prime Profit International Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BNERERER AR A 187 RARK
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

IS —

£=—=

NF=A=+—HILFE

37. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid/registered
Name of subsidiary operation capital
AL/ BETRHE
WEARER fens /AR R /iEREs
October International Trading The PRC HK$10,000,000
Co., Ltd
Mt REREE AR AR HE 10,000,000 7T
Splendid Favour Limited British Virgin Islands US$1
EHARAA AERAES %7
Wonderful Imagine Limited Hong Kong HK$1
FEERLE Bl 18T
Best Plus Global Limited British Virgin Islands US$1
EMRRERAA RERRESE £
Grant Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
BIBRRRT &R 1,000,000 7
# limited liability company (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macao legal person) established in the PRC.
* limited liability company (solely invested by foreign owned enterprise)

established in the PRC.

in the PRC.

limited liability company (solely invested by legal person) established

37. MBABRFAER (&)
Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company Principal activities
RATREZERITRE/
AMERAEEELHE TEXH
Directly Indirectly
Ei 554
- 100%  Inactive
TEZE
100% - Investment holding
RERR
- 100%  Inactive
TEZE
100% - Investment holding
RARR
= 51%  Distribution of electronics
products
PHETEM

fORRBERINERAB(REE - BB
FBFVENBE)

Y RRBERIZHAERAR (HINEREE

&) -

b RRBERZHARAR (REABE)
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The PRC subsidiaries adopted 31 December as financial year end
date for local statutory reporting purposes. For the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements, accounts of those PRC
subsidiaries for each of the 12 months ended 31 March 2018 and
2017 have been used after making adjustments, as appropriate,
for compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the reporting period or at any time during the year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to Yenbo Gain
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Yenbo Gain Group”), subsidiaries of
the Group with material non-controlling interests. The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets FEMBENEE
Current liabilities mEBaE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests IR R

GREAT WORLD COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD Annual Report 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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37. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 7. B RFAER(E)

REHETERBME - PEMBRF
T+ A=+—"HBAEVBRFEZHEE
H - ZEHFENBRAREE-_Z—\F
F—E—+F=ZA=1+—HI&+ 1@
AZREEEREAERBEMNZER
BVEHEE A% - AMREUR S BITEHRK -

BT B B ¥R B R Bk R E ] B
BEBEMREEERHES

BEEXFEREREZHZENB AR
15
TREFNEAERERIEERERZA
SEMBARBENERA R REKE
RE([BENEE ) ZER - AT25
Z A BERBE IR ELEM 2 RIRE
HHATZ B -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
58,961 78,358
57,406 96
(18,663) (15,511)
76,071 51,500
21,633 11,443
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

37. PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests (continued)

Revenue
Expenses

Loss attributable to owners of the
Company

Loss attributable to non-controlling
interests

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to owners of the
Company

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net cash (outflow)/inflow

FAsZ
ARBRE AEIGER

FEER s RS &1

REZER

AABHEAAEIEEE
Wk, (E518) @5

RS EEEE
W,/ (E518) @5

FEzEWE (BR)ER

S TR R AR,

REXGSREFRE

BREXGAAESFE
MEXBHBERTFE

RBEORt),/MAFE

Except for Yenbo Gain Group, the directors consider that the
non-controlling interests of other non-wholly owned subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 were insignificant
to the Group and thus are not separately presented in these
consolidated financial statements. In addition, no separate
financial information of other non-wholly owned subsidiaries are

required to be presented.

. MEBARFAER(E)

BEEAFERERZFZENBRR
HE(E)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FrET F#T
53,173 42,941
(62,211) (43,977)
(4,040) (848)
(4,998) (188)
(9,038) (1,036)
7,132 (4,151)
10,190 (921)
17,322 (5,072)
16,027 1,754
(38,567) -
1,037 =
(21,503) 1,754

BRAEBMEEN  EFRAE - HiIER
EMBRARIEEZE-_E—N\ER-_T—+
FZA=+—HIEFEZIEERERY
REBMELTEKN - At - WERZ
LREUIEREANBILES o 1o - I
EHMIEREMBRF 2B HEER
HATIAZT -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE T - N\GF=A=1T—HILFE

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

38.

MEXBELEEEZHIR

TRALAEEREXGELAREDN
e BRRGKIFRTEE BEX
BRELREAERERED KKK
ReRERERNARERARERER
EREXBNRSREN RS

Amounts Amounts

Amounts dueto due tonon- Amount
Finance ~ Convertible due to related  controlling duetoa
costs notes directors companies interests  shareholder Total
Eft  ENBE EAEER FEft
RENE TRRRE ESRE  ARRE BERE RRYE it
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
& AT T & AT & &
At 1 April 2017 RZZF—+EMA-H - 25,606 6,576 53,615 - 69414 155,211
Non-cash changes #5428
- Finance costs recognised (note 7)) —CHEARARA(#:27) 4 2,211 - - - - 2215
- Consideration of -ESEIKE
acquisition of Zhifeng - - - - 1,282 - 1,282
Cash flows ReRE
- Inflow from financing activities S FATIN - - - 5,928 1,037 = 6,965
- Outflow from financing activties -BEEB 2R @ - - - - = @
At 31 March 2018 R=B-NE=A=1-R - 21817 6,576 59,543 2,319 69,414 165,669
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

39.

40.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the following major non-cash investing
activities and financing activities which is not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

On 19 May 2017, the Group completed to acquire 60% issued
share capital in Zhifeng at total consideration of RMB36,000,000
(equivalents to HK$40,681,000) in which amount of approximately
HK$1,282,000 being unsettled at the end of the reporting period
and included in amounts due to non-controlling interests.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group redeemed
the Convertible Note with the face value of HK$33,840,000 on
maturity date in which the outstanding amount of the Convertible
Note being unsettled at the maturity date and included in amount
due to a shareholder.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 June 2018, Great World Investments Limited (the “Vendor”),
an wholly-owned subsidiary, had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Mr. Ng
Wa Pang (the “Purchaser”) pursuant to which the Vendor agreed
to dispose and the Purchaser agreed to buy the 51% of the
issued share capital of Best Sky Holdings Limited (“Best Sky”) at
consideration of HK$34,680,000 (the “Disposal”). Best Sky and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in Constructing landscaping
projects and earth-rock engineering, maintenance engineering
business and planting and selling forest trees and flowers which
represents the business segment of landscaping and earth-rock
engineering business operations. The Disposal constitutes a major
transaction and connected transaction of the Company. The
Disposal has not been completed up to the date of this annual
report. Upon completion of the Disposal, the Company will cease
to have any interests in Best Sky and its subsidiaries. Details of
the Disposal are set out in Company’s announcement dated 26
June 2018.

39.

40.

TEHFRERH
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R #36,000,0007T (#8& 740,681,000/
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HASR I R A5 8 ] 51| A FE 1 SRR AR M 2 3K
17 o

REBEE-_FT—tF=A=+—81L
FE O AEBERIPPEELHE
33,840,000 LW AT A AR =45 - E AP Al
B EEAREESHERIBATREE
A AR FRIE o

WEHRSEE
RZZE—N\EAZt+H 2BHE
A &l Great World Investments Limited
(IBErl)ERREREE(TER T
VEERR(EERRE] Bt - BH
AELERESREBEEXRITERAR
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(@) Statement of financial position of the Company

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Prepayment

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Deposits and prepayment
Cash and bank deposits

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amount due to a director

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes

Deferred tax liabilities
Amount due to a shareholder

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity

FRBEE
U I E
RITB AR ZRE
BIHIA
JRE W B B A B RIR

REBEE
we RIANRIA
Be RBITER

REBRE
HAb IR
e —REZFHIA

REBEEFE

FRBEME
ARESEE
EEFIBRAE
et —RBR IR

EEFE
BB
L@

Edi]

i

Signed on behalf of the board of directors by:

Ng Mui King, Joky
Director

Zhang Yangiang

Director
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AT ZBMBRRRR R

(@) FDARZEBBARREK

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#T FEr
104 125
20 20
- 6,309
158,068 161,055
158,192 167,509
748 1,309
35,838 39,961
36,586 41,270
(765) (670)
(6,556) (6,556)
(7,321) (7,226)
29,265 34,044
(27,817) (25,606)
(813) (1,174)
(33,208) (83,208)
(61,838) (59,988)
125,619 141,565
23,689 23,689
101,930 117,876
125,619 141,565
HUTESERRESSES

RER
EZ

RAE
EF
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company

(c)

M. ARFRZBBRRERRFREE(E)

(b) ERQEHE

Share Convertible
Share option notes equity  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
TRREE
R GE BRERE Bt ZHER g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT & & &
At 1 Aprl 2016 H=E-~EmA-B 241,360 11,513 35,144 (160302) 127,715
Redeemed upon maturity TAREEERRER
of convertible notes - - (6,430) 6,430 -
Conversion of convertible notes SATARRE 32,550 = (15,260) = 17,290
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FRBERZAREES
for the year - - - (27,129) (27,129
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017~ R=ZF—+E=A=1-H
k=E2—+%NA-H 273,910 11,613 13,454 (181,001) 117,876
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FRBERZARBEES
for the year = = = (15,946 (15,946)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E£=f=1-H 273,910 11,513 13,454 (196,947) 101,930
Nature and purpose of the reserves (c) REMEREW
(i)  Share premium () REE
The share premium account of the Company is BIEREFSEAREA(ZE
distributable to the owners of Company under the —=F1&7]) WEARFMA
Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman RRE AR KM N 4B RIS 2 FRIR
Islands subject to the provisions of the Company’s T+ AR R B R GD&ERRM
memorandum and articles of association and provided RARER AEL DR - AR
that the Company will be in a position to payoff its NRERBRERZDIKRER
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business g - (DReBEER BB HERS
immediately following the date on which the dividend is R EIE Y EF5 o
proposed to be distributed.
(i) Share options reserves (i) BREGEE

The share option reserves represent the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company.

R R R A A TR 2
AT G AR R o 21 B
2 AFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of the reserves (continued)
(i) Convertible notes equity reserve
The convertible notes equity reserve represents
the value of the equity component of unexercised
convertible notes issued by the Company with related
deferred tax recognised.

42. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 June 2018.
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TRIBEHER °

HEFSMBERE

HREMBBRRER _FT—-NFRA
“HNBEE=SHEREETIE



Five-Year Financial Summary

AFUBRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(ZE-T - N\F=A=1T—HIFE

The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted the audited financial

statements of the Group, are set out below:

RESULTS

Revenue W
Loss before tax BrBiRIEE
Income tax credit/(expenses) A3 %,/ (F%)

Loss for the year REFERE

Attributable to: PN
Owners of the Company PA/NEIEZ=IN
Non-controlling interests IR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BaE

Net assets BEFE
Non-controliing interests IR

RIS
ES

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLEFE

AEERBEREVRFE K
ENBEME (BB AKEREEZY B R

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—F-N\Fg —TtF T XF ZT-hHF T OEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FET FET FEr FET
66,892 55,122 18,212 1,502 1,559
(35,431) (19,106) (26,869) (14,148) (16,091)
433 627 2,938 (1,363) 848
(34,998) (18,479) (28,931) (15,511) (15,243)
(38,756) (17,822) (24,766) (15,511) (15,243)
3,758 (657) 835 - _
(34,998) (18,479) (23,931) (15,511) (15,243)
EERARE

Year ended 31 March

BE=PA=1—-HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\FE EZ—+tF ZT-RF ZT-HF T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FEr FEr
381,031 335,177 357,047 304,413 172,397
(222,575) (193,464) (210,022) (229,620) (154,9993)
158,456 141,713 147,025 74,793 17,404
47,750 10,914 12,380 = =

HRERERAIT —F—
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Major Properties

B ES

As at 31 March 2018
R-Z—N\FE=A=+—H

Investment property

Intended use

BERRZ

Location

o B

Commercial use

[HE35EbES

Commercial units on

Level 1 to 3 and

41 carparking spaces on
Basement, Venice Building,
No. 180 Renmin South Road,
Zhongxincheng District,
Leshan City,

Sichuan Province, The PRC
HR

e

e Siihi)

LR R

AR 1305
AN

123412

SEEAvIN

T4 EEEBEAL

Properties held for sale

Intended use

BERRZE

Location

i B

Commercial use
FER®

Residential units on

Level 5 to 21, Venice Building,
No. 180 Renmin South Road,
Zhongxincheng District,
Leshan City,

Sichuan Province, The PRC
H Y

byl

=i

Y

ARFEEK130%5%

L4 B e R E

S EVAL:

F=EEhI
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REM=E

Category of
lease term

HAER

Medium term lease

hHATEAY

FrEHEME

Category of
lease term

HAER

Medium term lease

R HATEAY

Gross
floor area
HEREMEE
(sq.m.)
(FIHK)

8,471.90

Gross
floor area
HEEEE
(sq.m.)
(F7K)

19,779.92

Group’s
interest
TEBEZ R
(%)

(%)

100

Group’s
interest
TEE R
(%)

(%)

100



N
A ¥
‘i\;@z 7
GREAT WORLD

COMPANY HOLDINGS LTD
BEXEKBERLF



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Major Properties
	Back Cover

